CHELTENHAM

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Notice of a meeting of
Planning Committee

Thursday, 19 March 2020
6.00 pm
Council Chamber - Municipal Offices

Membership

Councillors: | Garth Barnes (Chair), Paul Baker (Vice-Chair), Stephen Cooke,
Diggory Seacome, Victoria Atherstone, Bernard Fisher, Dilys Barrell,
Mike Collins, Alex Hegenbarth, Paul McCloskey, Tony Oliver,

Simon Wheeler, John Payne and Rowena Hay

The Council has a substitution process and any substitutions will be announced at the meeting

Important Notice

This meeting will be filmed by the council for training purposes. At the start of the
meeting the Chair will confirm if all or part of the meeting will be filmed. The
recording will not be broadcast to the council’s website or on any other online
platform but will be retained by the council for a period of six months.

If you make a representation to the meeting you will be deemed to have consented to

be filmed. By entering the Chamber you are also consenting to be filmed and to the
possible use of those images and sound recordings for training purposes.

Agenda
1.  APOLOGIES
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
3. DECLARATIONS OF INDEPENDENT SITE VISITS
4. PUBLIC QUESTIONS
5. MINUTES OF LAST MEETING (Pages 7 - 8)
6. PLANNING/LISTED BUILDING/CONSERVATION AREA
CONSENT/ADVERTISEMENT APPLICATIONS,
APPLICATIONS FOR LAWFUL DEVELOPMENT

CERTIFICATE AND TREE RELATED APPLICATIONS -
SEE MAIN SCHEDULE



7.

8.

a)
b)

c)

d)

20/00214/CONDIT Wyastone Hotel, Parabola Road
19/02449/FUL Kyle Lodge, Greenway Lane

20/00154/FUL Oakfield House Stables, Greenway
Lane

20/00327/CONDIT Cheltenham Enterprise Centre,
Central Way

APPEAL UPDATES

ANY OTHER ITEMS THE CHAIRMAN DETERMINES
URGENT AND REQUIRES A DECISION

Contact Officer: Democratic Services,
Email: builtenvironment@cheltenham.gov.uk

(Pages 9 - 22)
(Pages 23 - 76)

(Pages 77 - 112)

(Pages 113 - 118)

(Pages 119 - 122)


mailto:builtenvironment@cheltenham.gov.uk










This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 5
Page 7

Planning Committee

Thursday, 20th February, 2020
6.00 - 6.15 pm

Attendees

Councillors: Councillor Garth Barnes (Chair), Councillor Paul Baker (Vice-
Chair), Councillor Stephen Cooke, Councillor Diggory Seacome,
Councillor Victoria Atherstone, Councillor Bernard Fisher,
Councillor Mike Collins, Councillor Alex Hegenbarth, Councillor
Paul McCloskey, Councillor Tony Oliver and Councillor John
Payne

Officers in Attendance: | Craig Hemphill (Principal Plannning Officer) and Lucy White

1. Apologies
Councillor Barrell and Councillor Wheeler

2, Declarations of Interest
Councillor Cook said that his son used to work as a lifeguard at the lido.

3. Declarations of independent site visits
Councillor Fisher stated that he went on a site visit to Sandford Park House on 20/02/20.

4, Public Questions
There were no public questions at this meeting.

5. Minutes of last meeting
Minutes for the meeting on 16/01/20 were approved.

6. Planning/Listed Building/Conservation Area Consent/Advertisement
Applications, Applications for Lawful Development Certificate and Tree related
applications — see Main Schedule

7. 19/01735/FUL & LBC Sandford Park House
Lucy White (Planning Officer) explained that the permission is for the property at Sandford
Park House for change of use and to convert it into 12 apartments.

There were no further questions or comments.
Chair moved to a vote.
Vote 1 - In favour of the proposal — Unanimous Result in favour

Vote 2 — Listed Building Status — Unanimous Result in favour

8. 19/02430/LBC Sandford Lido

Craig Hemphill (Planning Officer) explained that the permission is for minor internal
alterations to a wall and the ceiling of the café foyer and server entrance within the existing
café building.

VA stated that she is in favour of removing the fake ceiling and thinks that the property will
be much improved.

SC added that he was very in favour of this as it will improve the environment for both staff
and visitors.

AH Also agreed



2 Planning <Page 8 (20.2.20)

Chair moved to a vote

Vote for Listed Building Consent — Unanimous vote in favour

9. 19/02438/FUL & LBC Sandford Lido

Craig Hemphill (Planning Officer) explained that the applicant is seeking planning permission
and listed building consent for the siting of a Portakabin to be used as an office including
welfare facilities. The site is located on the site of a gym building which has now been
demolished.

Matter then opened to members

SC — Acknowledged that the Lido is a jewel in Cheltenham’s crown and it is important to
preserve it. He raised a concern that temporary buildings aren’t always temporary (could be
there for longer than 3 years) and this is a concern of the Civic Society as is the type of
portakabin they chose . He asked that maybe the Civic Society could be consulted about
this alongside the Lido. He did very much emphasise that he would be supporting the
proposal.

GB - Confirmed that this is just one step of the process and that everything has to go though
the Planning Committee.

Planning Officer - Confirmed that there is a 3 year consent and this matter can then be
reviewed. The Lido are aware of this and will review their own directives at that point, further
discussion can then take place if needed.

RH — Stated that the Lido is currently raising money for several millions of pounds of
improvements, mostly for improvements more significant than this development which is
bound to be temporary. There was also reference made to previous building on site that
lasted a long time.

Chair moved to a vote

Vote 1 —in favour of proposal —in favour — Unanimous
Vote 2 Listed Building status —in favour - Unanimous

10. Appeal Updates
No notes on appeal updates

11.  Any other items the Chairman determines urgent and requires a
decision

Chairman



Agenda Iltem 6a

Page 9
APPLICATION NO: 20/00214/CONDIT OFFICER: Mrs Victoria Harris
DATE REGISTERED: 5th February 2020 DATE OF EXPIRY: 1st April 2020
DATE VALIDATED: 5th February 2020 DATE OF SITE VISIT: 12" February 2020
WARD: Lansdown PARISH:

APPLICANT: | Mr J Krauer

AGENT:

LOCATION: | Wyastone Hotel, Parabola Road, Cheltenham

PROPOSAL: | Variation of condition 2 on Planning permission 17/01835/FUL

RECOMMENDATION: Permit

'y |
e
o
S uts
_ly -
A \/\ o
Y
niper Hou \ s o \
A e
- \ Langdown 1)
. \

(S T )
D

Y
\v’ﬂﬁsu E‘A\
g
7
|

This site map is for reference purposes only. OS Crown Copyright. All rights reserved Cheltenham Borough Council 100024384 2007



Page 10

1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND PROPOSAL

11

1.2

1.3

1.4

15

The application site relates to the former detached 2-storey garage building originally
associated with the Wyastone Hotel. The 2 storey building is located to the rear of the
former Wyastone Hotel and is accessed from Lansdown Terrace Lane.

Planning permission was granted in November 2017 for the change of use of the hotel
(Class C1) and coach house to two independent dwellings (Class C3) and the change of
use and external alterations of the rear garage building to create three dwellings.

Applications to vary conditions attached to a planning permission are known as s.73
applications and are commonly used to vary approved schemes where the proposed
revisions constitute a material change but do not alter the overall form, character or
description of development. The consultation process is the same as a planning
application and a new decision, along with relevant conditions is issued at the end of the
process.

The proposed amendments relate to a change in the doors, windows and rainwater
goods. The current approved plans show white painted doors and windows. The windows
had the appearance of sash windows however this was not specified or conditioned. The
proposed plans show powder coated aluminium grey windows and doors and grey
rainwater goods.

The application is at committee at the request of Clir Seacome because the proposal is
not in accordance with the original application; the windows now grey and not white and
no longer sash window openings.

2. CONSTRAINTS AND RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

Constraints:

Airport Safeguarding over 45m
Conservation Area

Local Listing

Principal Urban Area

Smoke Control Order

Relevant Planning History:

02/00568/CONDIT  28th June 2002 PER

Removal of condition 2 on planning application CB14134/04 requiring the dwelling and
utility area to be used in connection with the Wyastone Hotel for occupation by the
proprietor/manager of the hotel and for storage of hotel equipment

04/01238/COU  13th September 2004 REF
Change of use of The Coach House from hotel rooms to private dwelling with minor
alterations

05/01291/COU  10th October 2005 PER
Change of use of the coach house from hotel rooms to private dwelling with minor
alterations

09/01300/FUL  28th October 2009 PER
Modifications to existing roof with additional modified dormers and rooflights - revised
proposal following withdrawal of previous application under ref. 08/00828/FUL



Page 11

10/01678/COU  14th December 2010 PER
Change of use of first floor rear annexe from owners/manager's accommodation and utility
and storage space to 3 letting rooms in connection with existing hotel

17/01835/FUL  17th November 2017 PER

Change of use of hotel (class c1) and coach house to two independent dwellings (class ¢3),
change of use and external alterations of rear annexe to create three 1-bed dwellings; and
use of associated land as domestic curtilages.

19/00919/AMEND  4th June 2019 PAMEND
Non material amendment to planning permission ref. 17/01835/FUL - minor door and
window alterations to rear annexe

19/01045/DISCON  13th June 2019 DISCHA
Discharge of conditions 3 and 7 on Planning Permission 17/01835/FUL - External render
colours and highways construction management plan

19/02217/ADV  10th December 2019 GRANT
2 no. 0.9m x 1.8m freestanding signs advertising properties for sale

10/01678/COU 4 PERP
Change of use of first floor rear annexe from owners/manager's accommodation and utility
and storage space to 3 letting rooms in connection with existing hotel

3. POLICIES AND GUIDANCE

National Planning Policy Framework

Section 8 Promoting healthy and safe communities

Section 12 Achieving well-designed places

Section 16 Conserving and enhancing the historic environment

Saved Local Plan Policies
CP 4 Safe and sustainable living
CP 7 Design

Adopted Joint Core Strategy Policies
SD4 Design Requirements
SD8 Historic Environment
SD14 Health and Environmental Quality

Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents
Central conservation area: Bayshill Character Area and Management Plan (Feb 2007)
Central conservation area: Lansdown Character Area and Management Plan (July 2008)

4. CONSULTATIONS

None



Page 12

5. PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS

Number of letters sent 3

Total comments received

Number of supporting

2
7
Number of objections 7
0
0

General comment

5.1

23 letters were sent to neighbouring properties, a site notice was displayed and an advert
was published in the Gloucestershire Echo. In response to this publicity, 6 objections have
been received. The planning objections related to;

- Concern that extra bedroom will increase demand for parking/inadequate parking for 2
bedroom houses. Highway safety.

- Impact on privacy

- Design not in keeping with the location.

6. OFFICER COMMENTS

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

Determining Issues

The key issues in determining this application are considered to be (i) fall-back position,
(i) design and visual impact, (iii) neighbour amenity, (iv) highway safety issues.

The site and its context

The application site is within the Principle Urban Area of Cheltenham and the principle of
development/change of use to provide three houses has been accepted through the
granting of planning permission 17/01835/FUL.

This application seeks retrospective planning permission for powder coated aluminium
grey windows and doors and rainwater goods to replace the approved white painted
windows and doors and rainwater goods. Therefore, the consideration of this application
relates purely to the acceptability of the proposed fenestration and rainwater goods and it
is not possible to revisit any other issue in relation to these new dwellings.

Fall-Back Position

Members will be aware that sometimes a ‘fall-back’ position is established for sites. This
relates to development and alterations which could be carried out lawfully on the site in
the absence of the current application.

In this instance, planning permission would not specifically be required to alter the number
of bedrooms within a dwelling. For example, a large bedroom could be subdivided to
create two bedrooms or a dining room or study could be used as a bedroom without the
need for planning permission.

Design

Local Plan policy CP7 (design) requires all new development to be of a high standard of
architectural design and development should complement and respect neighbouring
development and the character of the locality. Additional design principles are set out
within adopted JCS policy SD4.



6.11

6.12

6.13

6.14

6.15

6.16

6.17

6.18

6.19

6.20

6.21

Page 13

It is regrettable that the windows and doors installed are not in accordance with the
approved plans; however this would not in itself be a reason to refuse the planning
application. That said, the merits of the alternative windows will need to be assessed in
terms of their impact upon the character and appearance of both the existing building and
wider conservation area.

The application site comprises of a modern building built in the early 1990s and is located
within the Central Conservation Area (Lansdown/Bayshill Character Areas) and close to a
number of listed buildings.

The grey aluminium windows, doors and rainwater goods are of a contemporary high
quality design and are of an appropriate material and colour given the age of the building.
Officers do not consider that they would impact negatively upon the dwellings themselves
or the character or appearance of the wider area.

The proposed windows, doors and rainwater goods are therefore considered acceptable
and comply with policy SD4 of the Joint Core Strategy and saved Local Plan policy CP7.

Impact on neighbouring property

Saved Local Plan policy CP4 (safe and sustainable living) advises that development will
only be permitted where it would not cause unacceptable harm to the amenity of adjoining
land users or the locality. The policy is consistent with advice set out within adopted JCS
policy SD14.

The front first floor windows have been installed as clear glazed openings. A number of
neighbouring properties have objected to these clear glazed windows because of the
impact on privacy.

On planning application 17/01835/FUL the windows were conditioned to ensure at all
times the windows were glazed with obscure glass. See below condition;

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and/or re-enacting that order), the front
first floor windows to the three 1-bed dwellings shall at all times be glazed with obscure
glass to at least Pilkington Level 3 (or equivalent).

Reason: To safeguard the privacy of adjacent properties having regard to Policies CP4 of
the Cheltenham Borough Local Plan (adopted 2006).

Supplementary planning document ‘Residential Alterations and Extensions’ states that to
ensure privacy is maintained, facing windows to habitable rooms (living, dining and
bedroom) should be a minimum of 21 metres apart, with at least 10.5 metres from window
to boundary.

Similarly, Policy CP4 (note 4) sets out that the Council will apply the following minimum
distances:

* 21 metres between dwellings which face each other where both have windows with
clear glazing

» 12 metres between dwellings, which face each other where only one has windows
with clear glazing.

It is noted that the first floor windows on the front elevation are within approximately 7m of
the shared rear amenity space of Evelyn Court and approximately 14m from the
neighbours’ windows in the rear wing of Evelyn Court. The new clear glazed windows (as



6.22

6.23

6.24

6.25

6.26

6.27

6.28

6.29

6.30

Page 14

initially proposed) failed to achieve the minimal distances as set out in CP4 and therefore
would have had an unacceptable impact on neighbouring amenity.

The plans have therefore been revised and the front first floor windows are now shown as
obscure glazed openings to ensure the privacy of the adjacent properties is protected.

As such, it is considered that the proposal accords with the aims of policy CP4 of the
Local Plan and policy SD14 of the JCS.

Access and highway issues

Adopted JCS policy INF1 advises that all development proposals should provide for safe
and efficient access to the highway network for all transport needs. The policy identifies
that planning permission should be granted where the highway impacts of the
development would not be severe.

A number of local residents have raised concerns that, due to the increase in
accommodation within the properties from 1 to 2 bedrooms, the proposal would result in
additional cars parking on the highway, causing safety and congestion concerns.

When considering the original application, the Highway Authority had no objection to the
principle of no off street parking being provided for the 3 x 1 bed dwellings.

The site is located in a sustainable location with more than acceptable access to public
transport and local amenities and facilities. Given the site’s location, the increase in
bedrooms from 1 to 2 should not result in a severe impact on the highway network, which
is the test outlined in JCS policy INF1 and the NPPF.

In any event, it must be remembered that, as outlined in section 6.8, these works would
be capable of being carried out under permitted development, were the houses complete.

Therefore it is not considered that the proposal results in an unacceptable impact on the
highway network.

7. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

7.1

For the reasons outlined above the proposal is considered to be acceptable and is
therefore recommended for approval. The list of conditions has been updated to reflect
the current stage of construction.

8. CONDITIONS / INFORMATIVES

11

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved plans listed in Schedule 1 of this decision notice and in accordance with the
approved plans listed in Condition 1 of the decision notice issued under planning
permission ref. 17/01835/FUL, 19/00919/AMEND and 19/01045/DISCON which are not
superseded by the granting of this planning permission.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

The planning permission hereby granted shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved plans listed in Schedule 1 of this decision notice.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.



Page 15

The development hereby approved shall not be occupied unless covered bicycle
storage has been provided in accordance with the approved plans. The covered bicycle
storage shall be retained in accordance with the approved plans at all times

Reason: To ensure adequate provision and availability of cycle parking, having regard
to Policy TP 6 of the Cheltenham Borough Local Plan (adopted 2006).

The development hereby approved shall not be occupied unless the bin storage has
been provided in accordance with the approved plans. The bin storage shall be retained
in accordance with the approved plans at all times

Reason: In the interests of sustainable waste management and recycling, having regard
to Policy W36 of the Gloucestershire Waste Local Plan.

Notwithstanding the provisions of The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and/or re-enacting that
order), the front first floor windows to the dwellings shall at all times be glazed with
obscure glass to at least Pilkington Level 3 (or equivalent).

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of adjacent properties, having regard to saved
policy CP4 of the Cheltenham Borough Local Plan (2006) and adopted policy SD14 of
the Joint Core Strategy (2017).

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted details for the
exterior colour previously approved under planning ref. 19/01045/DISCON.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory form of development in accordance with Local Plan
Policy CP7 relating to design.

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted Highways
Construction Management Plan previously approved under planning ref.
19/01045/DISCON.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety, having regard to Policy TP1 of the
Cheltenham Borough Local Plan (adopted 2006). This information is required up front
because highway safety could otherwise be compromised at the beginning of
construction.

INFORMATIVES

1

In accordance with the requirements of The Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 and the provisions of the NPPF, the
Local Planning Authority adopts a positive and proactive approach to dealing with
planning applications and where possible, will seek solutions to any problems that arise
when dealing with a planning application with the aim of fostering the delivery of
sustainable development.

At the heart of this positive and proactive approach is the authority's pre-application
advice service for all types of development. Further to this however, the authority
publishes guidance on the Council's website on how to submit planning applications
and provides full and up-to-date information in relation to planning applications to
enable the applicant, and other interested parties, to track progress.

In this instance, having had regard to all material considerations, the application
constitutes sustainable development and has therefore been approved in a timely
manner.



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 17

APPLICATION NO: 20/00214/CONDIT OFFICER: Mrs Victoria Harris
DATE REGISTERED: 5th February 2020 DATE OF EXPIRY : 1st April 2020
WARD: Lansdown PARISH:

APPLICANT: | Mr J Krauer

LOCATION: | Wyastone Hotel Parabola Road Cheltenham

PROPOSAL: | Variation of condition 2 on Planning permission 17/01835/FUL - to reflect the as built
changes and improve design

REPRESENTATIONS

Number of contributors
Number of objections
Number of representations
Number of supporting

(@ Neie)iep)

Evelyn Court
Malvern Road
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL50 2JR

Comments: 23rd February 2020

Evelyn Court (Cheltenham) Limited is the freeholder and management company for the 19
properties and communal areas comprising Evelyn Court. Our responsibilities include maintaining
Evelyn Court's communal areas on behalf of our leaseholders as well as waste management.

Condition 6 : The Management Committee of Evelyn Court objects to the removal of condition 6.
Evelyn Court's residents utilise the gardens at Evelyn Court, which back onto Lansdown Terrace
Lane. The proximity of the development to our gardens (within several meters, directly
overlooking) compromises the privacy of our gardens. We therefore object to any removal of the
obscured glazing condition.

Condition 2 : The Management Committee of Evelyn Court objects to the variation of condition 2,
specifically the internal layout changes from a 1-bedroom to 2-bedroom design. The provision of
1 bike space per dwelling in the bike storage area is not proposed to increase, despite the
doubling of bedrooms available. There is also no provision for off-street parking for these
dwellings. As a result, the demand for on-street parking in the lane is likely to increase, as will
associated vehicle noise. Parking in Lansdown Terrace Lane is very limited; the lane is tight with
few passing places. The council frequently has difficulty getting down the lane to service our
communal recycling and refuse areas, due to parked or manoeuvring vehicles. If the design is to
be changed to 2-bedroom dwellings, we request that consideration is made into placing a section
106 planning obligation on the dwellings, removing eligibility of future occupiers for residents’
parking permits.



Page 18

17 Evelyn Court
Malvern Road
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL50 2JR

Comments: 15th February 2020
| wish to strongly object to the above planning application on the following grounds

1. The requirement for obscured glazing for the upper floor windows was to protect the privacy
of the neighbours as the development is within 7 metres of the shared amenity space for
Evelyn Court. It is immaterial whether the view from the first floor windows is from a bathroom
or a bedroom, it still results in a loss of privacy for the residents of Evelyn Court.

2. The colours of the windows, downpipes and render are not in keeping with the location. The
windows in particular should be white as per the original consent.

3. | consider this application to grant permission for what has been built rather than what was
originally granted planning permission shows the contempt the developer has for both the
planning process and the local residents. Throughout the building work contractors have
failed to keep their vehicles, plant and materials within the site boundaries as undertaken in
the Construction Method Statement submitted. This has caused annoyance and
inconvenience to local residents and the council's refuse collectors have not always been
able to collect rubbish and recycling.

Comments: 10th March 2020

| see, that as well as the other unsightly aspects of this development, waste pipes have now
appeared on the front of the building. As previoulsy stated by other objectors from Evelyn Court,
the exterior appearance of these three houses is far from the original planning consent and | feel
that any alterations from that consent should be strongly resisited.

8 Evelyn Court
Malvern Road
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL50 2JR

Comments: 21st February 2020
As a householder in Evelyn Court directly overlooking (from the first floor) this property | strongly
object to the above planning application:

1. Obscured Glazing:

My privacy would be compromised by the removal of obscured glazing for the 1st floor of the
property. | have a bedroom, bathroom and kitchen directly overlooking the property and is also
within a small distance of our shared garden. | believe the change is requested as it is now a
bedroom however the loss of privacy would still be significant regardless of whether this is a
bathroom or a bedroom. The loss of privacy was noted by the planning officer in the initial
application.

2. Render and Drain Pipes

These are not in keeping with the Lansdown Conservation area and stand out amongst other
buildings in the area. The window frames are meant to be white as per the original plans and the
builder clearly had no intention of installing white (sash) windows as the current windows were
installed early on in the build to make the building watertight. The overall combination of the
previous hotel and this building was described by a visitor as "it looks like a Gulag". It is garish
and frankly looks out of keeping with the neighbouring properties.



Page 19

3. General

The developer/builder seems to have had no intention to adhere to the original plan. Furthermore,
the changes appear to be intentional and planned i.e. they had no intention of adhering to the
original planning approval or changes recommended by the planning officers. The overall impact
on our street and outlook is significant. Evelyn Court is one of Cheltenham's "gems" and the
owners of the various properties have made significant investments in the upkeep of the building,
for which we have received civic awards. It seems inconceivable that developers don't show
similar respect for the heritage of Cheltenham's iconic landscape.

Finally, it is also worth noting that the planning team gave permission for previous changes
without consultation which is disappointing as | could have made objections at an earlier stage.

Comments: 11th March 2020

| continue to object strongly to these changes. Drain pipes are now being installed to the front of
the building and it continues to be an eyesore in our local area. It seems that contractors are able
to apply for retrospective planning permission regardless of the significant impact it has on the
residents.

6 Evelyn Court
Malvern Road
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL50 2JR

Comments: 23rd February 2020
| have the following objections to this planning application.

A. The need for obscured glazing remains. The property overlooks mine, and also both my
garden and the Evelyn Court communal one, and our privacy is compromised accordingly.

B. The elevation facing the rear of Evelyn Court is not in keeping with the rest of the
neighbourhood. Sash windows were originally proposed, and have now been replaced with
cheap modern ones, and the rendering is unsympathetic and ugly.

C. The increase to two bedrooms from the original one will increase the pressure on parking in
Lansdown Terrace Lane, which is a narrow cul-de-sac. Council vehicles using it regularly will
be severely inconvenienced.

2 Evelyn Court
Malvern Road
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL50 2JR

Comments: 24th February 2020
| overlook the front and side (west and south elevations) of the development and am a regular
user of Lansdown Terrace Lane.

With regards the request to retrospectively vary condition 2, my opinion is that the amendments
proposed (style/colour of windows, doors and rainwater goods) will harm the character and
appearance of this development and its surroundings. Specifically:



Page 20

1. This building previously had white sash windows. The Officer Report on the original planning
decision took into consideration that "The new windows match the existing and are of a
traditional design." The developers are now deviating from this, having instead installed
modern grey metal casement windows and modern grey doors. | believe these do not suit the
development.

2. Lansdown Terrace Lane is a prominent lane on the boundary between the Lansdown and
Bayshill Character Areas within the Cheltenham Central Conservation Area. Being one of
Cheltenham's best preserved back lanes, with many period mews properties, it was recently
selected as a filming location for a BBC drama, evidencing its heritage value. | believe the
proposed amendments will have a negative impact on the architectural integrity of this historic
lane, are incongruous in the context of neighbouring properties and the materials proposed do
not respect the back lane character as required by Cheltenham Local Policy Plan BE6.

3. The introduction of multiple boiler flues, which emerge through the front upstairs walls, have a
negative impact and are not shown on the plans.

4. The new smaller window installed on the south elevation appears out of proportion to the
original reveal and window sill, which are both larger and remain in-situ. The proposed plan
for the south elevation as provided in the application does not reflect these characteristics of
the as-built design.

5. The estate agent's brochure for the dwellings includes a to-be illustration of the development
with sash windows, traditional doors and no flues; comparing this to the as-built design
highlights many negative aspects of the changes.

With regards the request to retrospectively remove condition 6, | agree with the Officer Report in
the original application that privacy of adjacent properties should be protected.

For the above reasons | believe the application should be resisted.
Thank you for the opportunity to comment.

Comments: 10th March 2020
[Subsequent to the revised application on 03 March this comment replaces my original comment
of 24 Feb]

| overlook the front and side (west and south elevations) of the development and am a regular
user of Lansdown Terrace Lane.

With regards the revised application, my opinion is that the amendments proposed (style/colour
of windows, doors and rainwater goods) will harm the character and appearance of this
development and its surroundings. Specifically:

1. Prior to re-development, this building had 1-over-1 vertically sliding sash windows with a
single discrete meeting rail visible in the middle when closed. These matched neighbouring
properties and are simple to source/repair/replace like-for-like. The Officer Report on the
original planning decision took into consideration that "The new windows match the existing
and are of a traditional design." The developers have now deviated from this in installing
modern style casement windows. The new windows double the quantity & size of the rails
visible in the centre of the window, use internal metal handles visible from outside and use an
opening mechanism where the top half of the window swings into the lane. | believe these do
not suit the character of the development, do not match the previous windows and do not
match neighbouring properties.

2. The development is being sold as 3 independent dwellings. The double-rail design and
unique handles of these windows will make it difficult for new owners to source like-for-like



Page 21

windows in the future when they need to be replaced or repaired. As a result, there is an
increased likelihood that future windows will not match, harming the building's appearance.

3. Lansdown Terrace Lane is a prominent lane on the boundary between the Lansdown and
Bayshill Character Areas within the Cheltenham Central Conservation Area. Being one of
Cheltenham's best preserved back lanes, with many mews properties, it was recently
selected as a filming location for a BBC period drama, evidencing its heritage value. The grey
colour of the windows, doors and rainwater goods does not match neighbouring properties.
Using doors and windows of a modern design is not in keeping with neighbouring properties. |
believe the proposed amendments will therefore have a negative impact on the architectural
integrity of this historic lane, are incongruous in the context of neighbouring properties and the
materials proposed do not respect the back lane character as required by Cheltenham Local
Policy Plan BES.

4. The window installed on the south elevation appears out of proportion to the original reveal
and window sill, which are both larger and remain in-situ. The proposed plan for the south
elevation as provided in the application does not reflect these characteristics of the as-built
design, instead showing a smaller sill.

5. The introduction of multiple boiler flues, which emerge through the front upstairs walls, have a
negative impact and are not shown on the plans. In addition, new waste pipes have also
appeared on this most visually prominent elevation and are likewise not shown on the plans.
These elements are currently white and it is unclear if these are also to be painted to match
the rainwater goods.

6. The estate agent's brochure for the dwellings
(www.kingsleyevans.co.uk/page/property/jet_kie-CHL190192/) includes a to-be illustration of
the development with sash windows, traditional doors and no flues; comparing this to the as-
built design highlights many negative aspects of the application.

For the above reasons | believe the application should be resisted.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment.

18 Lansdown Terrace
Cheltenham
GI50 2jp

Comments: 12th February 2020

We would firstly like to object to the colour / window frame type of this development. You'd expect
this to be white sash? This lane has much history and to have grey frames and gutters is totally
unfitting for the setting.

May we also object to the fact that these properties now seem to have had opaque windows
exchanged for clear which we are assuming means the room will not be used for the original
permission use as a bathroom. This in turn potentially increasing the number of residents
requiring services such as parking etc?

We can see these properties from 3 floors of our house and | have to say they are totally
unsightly for such a preserved area using these grey tones. If the windows were white sash it
may help. I'm sure | previously saw architect drawings showing white sash?



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6b
Page 23

APPLICATION NO: 19/02449/FUL OFFICER: Mr Ben Hawkes

DATE REGISTERED: 18th December 2019 DATE OF EXPIRY: 12th February 2020

DATE VALIDATED: 18th December 2019 DATE OF SITE VISIT:

WARD: Battledown PARISH: Charlton Kings

APPLICANT: | Mr And Mrs Gleeson

AGENT: SF Planning Limited

LOCATION: | Kyle Lodge, Greenway Lane, Charlton Kings

PROPOSAL: | Construction of a single 5-bedroom self and custom build dwelling with
associated buildings, landscaping, works and infrastructure

RECOMMENDATION: Permit

This site map is for reference purposes only. OS Crown Copyright. All rights reserved Cheltenham Borough Council 100024384 2007



Page 24
1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND PROPOSAL

1.1 The application sites relates to the garden land of an existing detached dwelling known as
Kyle Lodge and is accessed from Greenway Lane. The application site is located outside
of the Principle Urban Area (PUA) and is within the Cotswolds Area of Outstanding
Natural Beauty (AONB).

1.2 The applicant is seeking planning permission for the construction of a detached part two
storey and part single storey self-build dwelling and associated garage building.

1.3 The application is at planning committee at the request of Councillor Fisher and Councillor
Baker due to its sensitive location within the AONB.

2. CONSTRAINTS AND RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

Constraints:

Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty
Airport safeguarding over 15m
Residents Associations

Relevant Planning History:
09/01407/PREAPP CLO
Extensions

19/01255/PREAPP  2nd August 2019 CLO
Erection of a single dwelling and installation of associated infrastructure

89/00485/PC  25th May 1989 PER
Change Of Use Of Land To Residential Garden (Retrospective Application)

09/00991/FUL  28th August 2009 WDN
Erection of a 2-storey rear extension and single storey side extension

10/00027/FUL  5th March 2010 PER
Erection of a storey and half side extension and two storey rear extension

10/00027/FUL 3_COMP
Erection of a storey and half side extension and two storey rear extension

3. POLICIES AND GUIDANCE

National Planning Policy Framework

Section 2 Achieving sustainable development

Section 4 Decision-making

Section 5 Delivering a sufficient supply of homes

Section 11 Making effective use of land

Section 12 Achieving well-designed places

Section 15 Conserving and enhancing the natural environment
Section 16 Conserving and enhancing the historic environment

Saved Local Plan Policies

CP 2 Sequential approach to location of development
CP 4 Safe and sustainable living

CP 7 Design




Page 25

GE 5 Protection and replacement of trees
GE 6 Trees and development

Adopted Joint Core Strategy Policies
SP1 The Need for New Development

SP2 Distribution of New Development
SD3 Sustainable Design and Construction
SD4 Design Requirements

SD6 Landscape

SD7 The Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty
SD8 Historic Environment

SD9 Biodiversity and Geodiversity

SD10 Residential Development

SD11 Housing Mix and Standards

SD14 Health and Environmental Quality
INF1 Transport Network

Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents
Development on garden land and infill sites in Cheltenham (2009)
Cotswold AONB Management Plan

4. CONSULTATIONS

Gloucestershire Centre For Environmental Records
14th January 2020

Biodiversity report available to view.

Building Control
3rd January 2020

The application will require Building Regulations approval. Please contact Cheltenham and
Tewkesbury borough council on 01242 264321 for further information.

Parish Council
23rd January 2020

The Committee understands and shares concerns over development in the AONB but,
given that the proposed development is with the curtilage of an existing dwelling, felt on
balance that there were not sufficient grounds to object to the application.

However, the Committee was concerned about the mass of the two-storey garage / family
room structure and its proximity to the adjacent public right of way and felt that the design
would be improved if this structure was either reduced to a single storey or moved away
from the right of way.

Cheltenham Civic Society
21st January 2020

The CBC website advises that this application is to be determined by Delegated Powers.
We believe that it should be considered by the full Planning Committee, for the following
reasons:-



Page 26

- The site falls within the AONB
- It has generated much public interest.

This application is on the agenda for the Forum's next meeting on 28 January, one day
after CBC's current expiry date but 2 weeks ahead of the statutory expiry date. Our
comments will be sent shortly after the 28th.

Landscape Architect
28th January 2020
Report available to view on CBC website.

Cotswold Conservation Board
13th February 2020

The Board does not normally comment on planning applications for single dwellings.
However, we are concerned about the ongoing (sub)urbanisation of the Cotswolds AONB
around the east side of Battledown Hill, along Greenway Lane and its environs.

The Board does not have capacity to provide a full consultation response. However, we
would like to bring to your attention the following points and ask you to give these great
weight in your planning decisions:

° Cheltenham Borough Council's landscape assessment of the Cotswolds AONB
within Cheltenham Borough, which identifies both these locations as high
landscape character sensitivity, high visual sensitivity, high overall landscape
sensitivity, high landscape value, major overall landscape constraint and low
overall landscape capacity. (Landscape Character, Sensitivity and Capacity
Assessment of Cotswolds AONB within the Cheltenham Borough Administrative
Area).

° The Cotswolds AONB Landscape Strategy & Guidelines, which identifies
Landscape Character Type 2 (Escarpment), in which these sites are located, as
being very sensitive to change.

° Housing need within the Cotswolds AONB:

- Policy CE12 of the Cotswolds AONB Management Plan, which states that
development in the Cotswolds AONB should be based on robust evidence of
local need arising from within the AONB ... Priority should be given to the
provision of affordable housing

- the Government's Planning Practice Guidance states that AONBs should not
normally be considered suitable areas for accommodation unmet needs from
adjoining (undesignated) areas (i.e. the part of Cheltenham Borough outside the
AONB).

o The aspirations of Cheltenham Borough Council for the Battledown Road area at
the time of the AONB boundary review (see attached document).

GCC Highways Planning Liaison Officer

10th January 2020

No objection.

The vehicular accesses hereby permitted shall not be brought into



Page 27

use until the existing roadside frontage boundaries have been set
back to provide visibility splays extending from a point 2.4m back
along the centre of the accesses measured from the public road
carriageway edge (the X point) to a point on the nearer carriageway
edge of the public road 54m distant in both directions (the Y points).
The area between those splays and the carriageway shall be reduced
in level and thereafter maintained so as to provide clear visibility
between 1.05m and 2.0m at the X point and between 0.26m and 2.0m
at the Y point above the adjacent carriageway level.

Reason:- To avoid an unacceptable impact on highway safety by ensuring
that adequate visibility is provided and maintained to ensure that a safe,
suitable and secure means of access for all people that minimises the
scope for conflict between traffic and cyclists and pedestrians is provided
in accordance with paragraphs 108 and 110 of the National Planning
Policy Framework.

Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted the
southern vehicular access shall be laid out and constructed in
accordance with the submitted plan drawing no. SKO3A but with a
minimum entrance width of 6.0m with any gates situated at least
10.0m back from the carriageway edge of the public road and hung
S0 as not to open outwards towards the public highway and with the
area of access road within at least 10.0m of the carriageway edge of
the public road surfaced in bound material, and shall be maintained
thereafter.

Reason: - To reduce potential highway impact by ensuring that there is a
safe, suitable and secure means of access for all people that minimises
the scope for conflict between traffic and cyclists and pedestrians in
accordance with paragraph 108 and 110 of the National Planning Policy
Framework.

Upon completion of the construction phase the southern vehicular
access shall be laid out and constructed in accordance with the
submitted plan drawing no. SKO1B with any gates situated at least
5.0m back from the carriageway edge of the public road and hung so
as not to open outwards towards the public highway, the area of
driveway within at least 5.0m of the carriageway edge of the public
road surfaced in bound material and the footway/verge in front has
been reinstated, and shall be maintained thereafter.

Reason: - To reduce potential highway safety impact by ensuring that a
safe and suitable access is laid out and constructed that minimises the
conflict between pedestrians, cyclists and vehicles in accordance with
paragraph 108 and 110 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

No development shall take place, including any demolition works,
until a construction management plan or construction method
statement has been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The approved plan/statement shall be
adhered to throughout the demolition/construction period. The
plan/statement shall provide for:

-Hours of operation;
-Parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors (including
measures taken to ensure satisfactory access and movement for



Page 28

existing occupiers of neighbouring properties during construction);
-Any necessary temporary traffic and parking management
measurements;

-Routes for construction traffic;

-Locations for loading/unloading and storage of plant, waste and
construction materials;

-Locations for wheel washing facilities;

-Arrangements to receive abnormal loads or unusually large vehicles
Reason: To reduce the potential impact on the public highway and
accommodate the efficient delivery of goods in accordance with paragraph
110 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Prior to commencement of any highway works the subject of any
ensuing S38 Adoption Agreements / S278 Highway Works Agreement
for the site, the Applicant is required to establish and maintain, and
keep maintained for the duration of those highway works, a
‘Residents Liaison Group’ (“RLG”) to comprise of one representative
each from:

The Applicant/Developer
The Council as LHA
The Local Council as LPA, and

Local Residents representative

Reason: To reduce the potential impact on the public highway and
accommodate the efficient delivery of goods in accordance with paragraph
110 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

NOTE:The LHA have no objection to the above subject to the applicant
obtaining a section 184 licence. The construction of a new access will
require the extension of a verge and/or footway crossing from the
carriageway under the Highways Act 1980 - Section 184 and the Applicant
is required to obtain the permission of Gloucestershire Highways on 08000
514 514 or highways@gloucestershire.gov.uk before commencing any
works on the highway.

NOTE: The upgrade works to the accesses require alteration to the
existing highway network and must be undertaken by the Highway
Authority or its appointed agents. An Agreement under Section 278 of the
Highways Act 1980 will be required. The Local Highway Area office will
need to be contacted prior to commencement of work on the access.

The applicant is also advised that it is an offence under section 161 of the
Highway Act 1980 to deposit anything on a highway the consequence of
which a user of the highway is injured or endangered. It is strongly
recommended that during any form of earthworks and/or excavations that
are carried out as part of the development, suitable vehicle wheel washing
equipment should be provided and used within the site, to prevent
contamination and damage to the adjacent roads.

Tree Officer
10th January 2020



Page 29

The CBC Tree Section has concerns regarding the proposed development in its current
form.

This primarily relates to 2 matters:

1) The proximity of the proposed development (building) in relation to the existing veteran
trees and,

2) Proposed underground service installation.

Both Trees T3 +T9 are considered to be veteran oak trees whose root spreads are likely to
be predominately underground to the west, north and south of the trunks but less to the
east where Greenway Lane is likely to have restricted normal root growth.

T3 trunk diameter is shown as 1390mm and as such the Root Protection Radius (RPR)
ought to be 20.85M. (1093X 15 as per Natural England Standing Advice on ancient trees)

T9 trunk diameter is shown as 1540mm and as such the Root Protection Radius ought to
be 23.1M. (as per standing advice).

In such instances, the proposed garage and dwelling is inside this RPR. If the proposed
dwelling and garage were moved (by a matter of metres) in a north-westerly direction, the
proposal would be outside the RPR of these trees.

The proposed access is therefore just beyond the edge of the above RPRs. However this is
in the order of 1-1.5M (for T3) and less than 1 metre for T9 and as such is broadly
acceptable. Underground service installation must follow the route of the proposed access
to the new dwelling. The proposed new access for Kyle Lodge appears to be beyond the
RPR of T's 3+18.

Whilst this proposed development pre-supposes the removal of the comparatively young
Turkey oak (T7), willow leaved pear (T6)as well as several other small trees, the CBC Tree
Section considers that given sufficient mitigative landscaping, the loss of their amenity is
acceptable. Whilst thee are indicative plans for new planting shown (Fig 10 Landscape
Strategy Plan by Carly Tinkler), there is insufficient detail and should the above final
position of the new build be appropriately adjusted, a detailed landscape plan must be
submitted and agreed as a condition of any planning permission. It is considered that the
proposed Cotswold stone coloured sealed gravel driveway should be changed to loose
gravel giving it a 'softer' appearance as well as being more practical in such a rural setting.

Given the likely heavy clay nature of the site (and current standing surface water) the
proposed alder trees are an appropriate species for such a location. However there are
several other trees marked which have not been described. Species, planting size, and tree
pit details etc must be described in detail. It may also be appropriate to plant at least 1
'specimen'’ tree in the proposed lawn area to the NE of the proposed dwelling.

Arb supervision should also be employed as a condition of any proposed planning
permission and as recommended in para 5.3 of the Arb report so as to ensure negligible
‘collateral ' damage is incurred during the construction process.

Whilst outside the red line defining the site (but within the curtilage of the current Kyle
Lodge demise, T18 oak is being damaged by the existing wall. This should be rectified by
partial demolition and rebuild of this wall. This will prevent any further damage to the
existing tree and to the wall. This is recommended within the arb report (para 4.10) and
point D of the Landscape Strategy. Drawing.

Tree Officer
6th March 2020



Page 30

Given that the proposed dwelling appears to have been moved in a north westerly direction
and will now be outside the RPA of the TPO protected veteran T's 3 + 9 as recommended
in previous comment, CBC Tree Section no longer has significant concerns regarding this
application.

As per previous comment and as adjusted, the following trees related conditions should
also be included:

1)
2)
3)
4)

5)

6)

underground services to follow the line of the access driveway,

sufficient foundation depth,

arb monitoring and other methods of construction, protection etc as identified by the
arb report,

Detailed landscape plan (showing tree pit details, tree sizes and protection from
deer, rabbits etc as necessary)

Given that the proposed dwelling and garage have been moved in a NW direction
so as to accommodate the RPA of the veteran trees, the Tree Protection Plan
should also be adjusted so as to increase the RPA accordingly. As such a revised
Tree protection plan must be submitted and agreed as a condition of any
permission.

A pre-commencement site meeting involving the retained arboriculturist, Trees
Officer and site foreman should be undertaken so as to check the position of the
tree protective fencing.

Campaign To Protect Rural England
23rd January 2020

CPRE objects to the above application to build a new 5-bedroom dwelling in the Cotswolds
AONB adjacent to Kyle Lodge for the following reasons.

The proposals conflict with the NPPF which, at paragraph 172, says "Great weight
should be given to conserving and enhancing landscape and scenic beauty in ...
Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty". Likewise, Policy SD7 of the Joint Core
Strategy states: "All development proposals in or within the setting of the
Cotswolds AONB will be required to conserve and, where appropriate, enhance
its landscape, scenic beauty, wildlife, cultural heritage and other special qualities.
Proposals will be required to be consistent with the policies set out in the
Cotswolds AONB Management Plan."”

The site lies outside the Principal Urban Area of Cheltenham in an area which is
essentially rural in character. Papers submitted as part of the application give
the impression that the site lies within a built-up area but this is not the case.
Satellite imagery clearly shows that Kyle Lodge and one or two neighbouring
houses, one of considerable antiquity, are separated both from Battledown and
from other parts of Charlton Kings by open fields. Although the application site
forms part of the gardens of Kyle Lodge, these are not connected to any other
developed and so cannot be regarded as urban brownfield land.

The site lies in an area of highly sensitive and valued landscape. A Landscape
Character, Sensitivity and Capacity Assessment of the Cotswolds AONB within
the Cheltenham Borough Administrative Area was commissioned by Cheltenham
Borough Council and reported in April 2015. This site falls within Landscape
Character Area 10.11, 'Greenway Wooded Farmed Slopes'. This area was
assessed to have a Medium-High visual sensitivity, High landscape sensitivity
and High Landscape Value, indicating that its landscape capacity for
development is Low.



Page 31

° There is a well-used public footpath which crosses Greenway Lane adjacent to the
application site. Any development therefore would have a damaging affect on
views both from the footpath and from Greenway Lane itself.

° The area where the site lies is part of the rural fringe of Cheltenham which acts as a
natural barrier to the town. This is an area which has been robustly defended
from development in the past. If approved the proposed development would be
a catalyst for further applications to develop the surrounding area which lies
within the Cotswolds AONB.

o CPRE urges the Borough Council to refuse this application. Should the
Planning Officers recommend approval, we request that the application be
referred to the Council Planning Committee for a decision.

Architects Panel
20th February 2020

Not supported.

Design Concept

The panel had concerns about this scheme because of its sensitive location in the AONB.
Whilst the panel had no objection to the principle of building a new dwelling in the grounds
of an existing property, and generally liked the contemporary architectural design, it was felt
this design would be more appropriate in an urban setting.

Design Detail

The panel had concerns over the size and scale of the development, particularly the Annex
building which is a substantial structure right up against and overlooking the public footpath.
Concerns were also raised about how the main house sits on the site and the extensive
excavation and ground modelling works required.

A more thorough appraisal of the scheme would have been possible if the applicant had
submitted a Landscape Visual Impact Assessment (LVIA) with the application. However,
the panel felt that had an LVIA been submitted it would have concluded this scheme was
over development of a sensitive site.

Cheltenham Civic Society
3rd February 2020

OBJECT
Whilst the Civic Society's Planning Forum is sympathetic to the applicants' family needs,
these cannot override the priorities of the AONB or the Council's own policies.

By virtue of the unpleasantly overpowering scale, mass and form of the proposed new
dwelling, the development would neither conserve nor enhance the Cotswold AONB and
would lead to both adverse landscape and visual change in the local area. The great slab-
like elevations lack finesse and have a "commercial", not "domestic", aesthetic. The
applicant's argument that as a "rural" garden this is a brownfield site, should not, we
believe, apply to development in an AONB.

Permitting this development could open the floodgates to further development and
degradation of this exceptional landscape, as other property owners along the lane could
seek to follow suit.



Page 32

5. PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS

5.1

5.2

5.3

Number of letters sent

Total comments received 53
Number of objections 15
Number of supporting 38
General comment 0

7 letters were sent to neighbouring properties, in addition, whilst not a statutory
requirement a site notice was also displayed.

A total of 53 letters of representation have been received, 15 in objection to the
application and 38 in support, officers do however note that supporting comments
received are not all from direct neighbours of the site.

The concerns raised have been summarised but are not limited to the following:

Principle of a new dwelling in this location not acceptable;
Impact on AONB and public footpath;

Scale;

Impact on highway network;

Visual impact;

Impact on wildlife;

The letters of support consider the proposal to be acceptable for the following reasons:

e Good design;
e Sensitive and contemporary design approach;
o Appropriate use of brownfield site.

6. OFFICER COMMENTS

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

Determining Issues

The main considerations of this application are principle, design, impact on neighbouring
amenity, impact on the AONB, impact on existing trees, highway safety and impact on
protected wildlife.

The site and its context

The application site is the residential curtilage/garden land associated with Kyle Lodge on
Greenway Lane, Kyle Lodge is a large detached property located in the north eastern part
of the site, with an associated detached garage building. The site is located outside of the
PUA and wholly within the AONB.

The closest and most direct neighbours to this site are Hallam Oaks to the north west and
Greenway Farm to the east, but generally the immediate locality is open land with
dispersed settlements which are generally large detached buildings sat within generous
plot sizes.

Pre-application advice
This application follows the submission of a formal pre-application in June 2019 where

officers provided a response on the acceptability of a new dwelling on this site. Officer’s
response acknowledged that the site was outside of the PUA and therefore would not be



6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

Page 33

compliant with JCS policy SD10, however it also acknowledged that Cheltenham could
not demonstrate a 5 year housing supply and therefore in housing terms could be
acceptable, subject to consideration of its impact on the AONB and all other material
considerations. Officers advised that significant consideration would need to be given to
the impact of any proposal on the AONB.

Principle

The application is being considered at a time where Cheltenham cannot demonstrate a 5
year housing land supply. The application site is located outside of Cheltenham’s PUA,
the proposal to erect a new dwelling on this site would therefore be contrary to JCS policy
SD10. However, as Cheltenham cannot currently demonstrate a 5 year housing land
supply, paragraph 11 of the NPPF becomes relevant.

Paragraph 11 of the NPPF sets out a presumption in favour of sustainable development.
In this instance, as Cheltenham cannot currently demonstrate a 5 year housing land
supply, paragraph 11 d) of the NPPF is applicable, this reads:

‘Where there are no relevant development plans, or the policies which are most important
for determining the application are out of date, permission should be granted unless:

i) the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of
particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development
proposed; or

ii) any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh
the benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a
whole.’

In this instance the application site is wholly within the AONB; therefore whilst the councils
current position of being unable to demonstrate a 5 year housing land supply is relevant
and is a material consideration of the application the tilted balance is not applied and it
does not automatically assume a presumption in favour of development, which could be
the case if the site was not designated. The main test as to whether the principle of a
dwelling on this site is acceptable is whether it would result in any unacceptable harm on
the AONB and surrounding landscape character, this is discussed later in the report.

Impact on the AONB

The local authority has received a representation from the Cotswolds conservation board,
whilst the comment received is not detailed and does not give specific considerations of
the application it does highlight concerns and identifies key points that need to be taken
into account given the sensitivity of the site

Policy SD7 of the JCS states:

‘All development proposals in or within the setting of the Cotswolds AONB will be required
to conserve and, where appropriate, enhance its landscape, scenic beauty, wildlife,
cultural heritage and other special qualities. Proposals will be required to be consistent
with the policies set out in the Cotswolds AONB Management Plan.’

Paragraph 172 of the NPPF states:
‘Great weight should be given to conserving and enhancing landscape and scenic beauty

in National Parks, the Broads and Areas of Outstanding natural Beauty, which have the
highest status of protection in relation to these issues.’



6.14

6.15

6.16

6.17

6.18

6.19

6.20

Page 34

Officers appreciate the level of supporting information that has been included in this
application which relates to the AONB and the landscape character, the application is
supported with various documents, plans and information including a landscape impact
assessment and various maps. It is clear that the information gathered by the applicant’s
landscape consultant has shaped the design and layout of this proposed development.

As the council does not currently have a landscape architect, a consultant was instructed
to review the application and the landscape impact assessment submitted by the applicant
in order to consider the impact of the proposed development on the AONB and the
surrounding landscape. The review was carried out and a full and detailed report was
received, the report concludes that there are three primary effects as a result of this
development, which include:

o Effects on landscape character and visual amenity;
e Effects on the AONB;
¢ Visual effects from the public right of way.

The response concluded that in terms of effects on the AONB ‘there are not anticipated to
be any significant landscape or visual effects on the AONB and none of its points of
natural beauty are considered to be unduly affected’. In terms of impact on landscape
character and visual amenity the report concluded that ‘Overall the adverse effect on the
character of the lane is considered to be minor.” And finally the visual effects from the
public right of way to be ‘minor — moderate adverse’, but suggested that suitable planting
could reduce this to a ‘minor adverse’ impact. Officers duly note that the proposed
landscaping plan identifies proposed new hedging in the location identified as being weak
by the landscape architect and is considered to be of an appropriate species that will
address this concern.

In the reports summary, the landscape architects states ‘there is no substantive landscape
or visual reason against the granting of consent for these proposals’ and suggests a
number of conditions.

Having considered the landscape architects comments, officers do not consider that the
proposal will result in any unacceptable harm to the AONB or surrounding landscape
character.

The proposal accords with the Cotswolds Conservation Board recently adopted position
statements relating to ‘Tranquillity’, specifically relating to policy CE4. The addition of one
new dwelling on this site is not considered to result in unacceptable noise pollution or
other visual disturbances.

Design and layout

The proposed development seeks to subdivide the existing plot to accommodate the new
dwelling, the existing property will occupy the north western part of the site and will be
served by a replacement access point on to Greenway Lane. The proposed new dwelling
will occupy the south western part of the site, served by a new access from Greenway
Lane.

The proposed new dwelling is a part single storey and part two storey flat roof building,
the dwelling sits centrally within the plot and is considered to be of an appropriate footprint
and scale for the size of the site. This layout would reflect the general character and
pattern of development in the locality.

Whilst the landscape architect considered the proposal to be acceptable in landscape
terms, officers considered that the overall scale and height of the proposed



6.21

6.22

6.23

6.24

6.25

6.26

6.27

6.28

6.29

6.30

6.31

Page 35

garage/annexe building which is arguably located in the most prominent part of the site
would result in harm to the design/character of the area, would not appear subservient to
the proposed new dwelling and would also be visually intrusive when viewed from the
public right of way to the south and the highway to the east. Officers therefore sought
revisions to the scheme, which were later received.

The revised plans now show the entire first floor of the garage/annexe building removed,
this has significantly reduced the overall scale of this building and is now considered by
officers to read clearly as a subservient ‘outbuilding’ to the main dwelling, will sit more
discreetly behind the existing hedgerow and will have less visual impact on the
surroundings. Officers consider the revised plans to fully address officer’s initial concerns
and the proposal now represents an acceptable scale and form.

The overall design of the proposed new dwelling and outbuilding is clearly contemporary;
officers feel that careful consideration has been given to the form, design and use of
materials and the proposal results in a building that is of an acceptable design for this
location. A condition requiring material samples/details to be submitted has been
suggested.

The proposal includes the introduction of a ‘green roof to the proposed dwelling and
separate garage building, this is considered to be acceptable however a condition has
been attached to ensure this is a meadow grass roof and shall not be sedum or any other
plant finish.

Impact on neighbouring amenity

Whilst concerns have been raised to development on this site, these concerns do not
specifically relate to impact on neighbouring amenity. Concerns have been raised
regarding visual impact and this has been discussed in the sections above.

The only adjacent land user that shares a boundary with the proposed development site is
to the North West and is occupied by Hallam Oaks. The residential dwelling on this site is
not directly adjacent to the shared boundary and is approximately 80 metres away from
the boundary of the site. In terms of privacy, the proposed new dwelling sits centrally
within the plot, upper floor windows on the western elevation of the new dwelling achieve
approximately 12 — 14 metres to the shared boundary and therefore exceed the minimum
distance of 10.5 metres that is considered to be acceptable.

Due to the scale of the proposed development, its position within the plot and its
relationship with neighbouring land users the proposal is not considered to result in any
unacceptable loss of light to any neighbouring land user or any overbearing impact,
however a condition has been suggested that prohibits the installation of external lighting
as this could be considered to have a greater impact on the area during evening hours.

It is not considered in this instance that the proposal will result in any unacceptable loss of
light, loss of privacy or overbearing impact on any neighbouring residential land user and
is therefore considered to be compliant with local plan policy CP4 and JCS policy SD14.
Access and highway issues

Gloucestershire Highways have reviewed the submission; no objection has been raised
however a number of conditions have been suggested, these are considered necessary
and have therefore been attached.

The proposed dwelling is not considered to result in any highway safety implications and
is considered to be acceptable on access, parking and highway safety grounds.

Trees/landscaping



6.32

6.33

6.34

6.35

6.36

Page 36

The tree officer has reviewed the application and initial concerns were raised regarding
the impact of the proposed development on protected trees within the site. These
concerns have since been addressed in the submission of revised plans whereby the
position of the new dwelling and garage building have been altered as suggested. The
tree officer raises no objection to the revised submission, subject to conditions which are
considered necessary and have been attached.

A detailed landscaping plan has been submitted and is considered to be acceptable.
Impact on protected species

Records show that important species have been sighted near the application site in the
past and in particular bats recorded in 2017, the sighting was recorded as 175 metres
from the site. An ecological impact assessment has been submitted as part of this
application and concludes that there is no evidence of protected species on the site.

It is not considered that development on this site would result in any unacceptable impact
on protected specifies. It is important to note that all bat species, their breeding sites and
resting places are protected by law as they are European Protected Species.

7. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

7.1

7.2

Officers fully acknowledge that this site has a particularly sensitive location within the
AONB and due consideration has been given to the letters of objection and the letters of
support that have been received.

On balance, given that officers consider there to be no unacceptable harm to the AONB
and the design, scale and form of the new dwelling to be appropriate, as well as being
acceptable in terms of impact on neighbouring amenity, impact on trees and appropriate
landscaping, any identified harm is not considered to significantly or demonstrably
outweigh the benefits, when assed against the relevant policies/framework, therefore
officer recommendation is to permit the application, subject to the conditions set out
below;

8. CONDITIONS / INFORMATIVES

1

The planning permission hereby granted shall be begun not later than the expiration of
three years from the date of this decision.

Reason: To accord with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act
2004.

The planning permission hereby granted shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved plans listed in Schedule 1 of this decision notice.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

All service runs shall fall outside the tree Root Protection Area(s) shown on the
approved drawings, unless otherwise first agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. Any such works shall be carried out in accordance with the National Joint
Utilities Group; Volume 4 (2007) (or any standard that reproduces or replaces this
standard).



Page 37

Reason: To safeguard the existing tree(s) in the interests of visual amenity, having
regard to saved policies GE5 and GE6 of the Cheltenham Borough Local Plan (2006).

Prior to the commencement of development (including demolition and site clearance), a
Tree Protection Plan (TPP) to BS5837:2012 (or any standard that reproduces or
replaces this standard) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The TPP shall include the methods of tree and /or hedge protection,
the position and specifications for the erection of tree protective fencing, and a
programme for its implementation. The works shall not be carried out unless in
accordance with the approved details, and the protective measures specified within the
TPP shall remain in place until the completion of the construction process.

Reason: To safeguard the existing tree(s) in the interests of visual amenity, having
regard to saved policies GE5 and GE6 of the Cheltenham Borough Local Plan (2006).
Approval is required upfront to ensure that important trees are not permanently
damaged or lost.

Notwithstanding the submitted landscaping plan, details of the following shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority:

a) tree pit details
b) tree sizes
C) tree protection measures from wildlife

All hard and/or soft landscaping works shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details prior to first occupation of any part of the development unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Any trees or plants indicated on the approved scheme which, within a period of five
years from the date of planting, die, are removed or become seriously damaged,
diseased or dying shall be replaced during the next planting season with other trees or
plants of a location, species and size which shall be first agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. All hard landscape works shall be permanently retained in
accordance with the approved details [delete if not appropriate].

Reason: In the interests of the character and appearance of the area, having regard to
saved policies CP7, GE5 and GEG6 of the Cheltenham Borough Local Plan (2006), and
adopted policies SD4 and INF3 of the Joint Core Strategy (2017). Approval is required
upfront because the landscaping is an integral part of the development and its
acceptability.

Notwithstanding The Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 and The
Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015
(or any order revoking and/or re-enacting those orders with or without modification), the
development shall be a self-build dwelling as defined under the Self-build and Custom
Housebuilding Act 2015 (as amended by the Housing and Planning Act 2016) and shall
not be used for any other purpose without express planning permission.

Reason: To ensure there are enough serviced plots of land to meet the demand for
self-build and custom housebuilding in the borough, having regard to the self-build
register and the provisions of the Joint Core Strategy (2017).

Notwithstanding the provisions of The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and/or re-enacting that
order with or without modification), no extensions, garages, sheds, outbuildings, walls,
fences or other built structures of any kind (other than those forming part of the
development hereby permitted) shall be erected without express planning permission.



10

11

Page 38

Reason: Any further extension or alteration requires further consideration to safeguard
the amenities of the area, having regard to saved policies CP4 and CP7 of the
Cheltenham Borough Local Plan (2006) and adopted policies SD4, SD7 and SD14 of
the Joint Core Strategy (2017).

No external facing or roofing materials shall be applied unless in accordance with:

a) a written specification of the materials; and/or
b) physical sample(s )of the materials.

The details of which shall have first been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of the character and appearance of the area, having regard to
saved policy CP7 of the Cheltenham Borough Local Plan (2006) and adopted policy
SD4 of the Joint Core Strategy (2017).

The vehicular accesses hereby permitted shall not be brought into use until the existing
roadside frontage boundaries have been set back to provide visibility splays extending
from a point 2.4m back along the centre of the accesses measured from the public road
carriageway edge (the X point) to a point on the nearer carriageway edge of the public
road 54m distant in both directions (the Y points).

The area between those splays and the carriageway shall be reduced in level and
thereafter maintained so as to provide clear visibility

between 1.05m and 2.0m at the X point and between 0.26m and 2.0m at the Y point
above the adjacent carriageway level.

Reason:- To avoid an unacceptable impact on highway safety by ensuring that
adequate visibility is provided and maintained to ensure that a safe, suitable and secure
means of access for all people that minimises thescope for conflict between traffic and
cyclists and pedestrians is provided in accordance with paragraphs 108 and 110 of the
National Planning Policy Framework.

Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted the southern
vehicular access shall be laid out and constructed in accordance with the submitted
plan drawing no. SKO3A but with a minimum entrance width of 6.0m with any gates
situated at least 10.0m back from the carriageway edge of the public road and hung so
as not to open outwards towards the public highway and with the area of access road
within at least 10.0m of the carriageway edge of the public road surfaced in bound
material, and shall be maintained

thereafter.

Reason: - To reduce potential highway impact by ensuring that there is a safe, suitable
and secure means of access for all people that minimises the scope for conflict
between traffic and cyclists and pedestrians in accordance with paragraph 108 and 110
of the National Planning Policy

Framework.

Upon completion of the construction phase the southern vehicular access shall be laid
out and constructed in accordance with the submitted plan drawing no. SKO1B with any
gates situated at least 5.0m back from the carriageway edge of the public road and
hung so as not to open outwards towards the public highway, the area of driveway
within at least 5.0m of the carriageway edge of the public road surfaced in bound
material and the footway/verge in front has been reinstated, and shall be maintained
thereafter.



12

13

14

15

Page 39

Reason: - To reduce potential highway safety impact by ensuring that a safe and
suitable access is laid out and constructed that minimises the conflict between
pedestrians, cyclists and vehicles in accordance with paragraph 108 and 110 of the
National Planning Policy Framework.

No development shall take place, including any demolition works, until a construction
management plan or construction method

statement has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The approved plan/statement shall be adhered to throughout the
demolition/construction period. The plan/statement shall provide for:

- Hours of operation;

- Parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors (including measures taken to ensure
satisfactory access and movement for existing occupiers of neighbouring properties
during construction);

- Any necessary temporary traffic and parking management measurements;

- Routes for construction traffic;

- Locations for loading/unloading and storage of plant, waste and construction
materials;

- Locations for wheel washing facilities;

- Arrangements to receive abnormal loads or unusually large vehicles

Reason: To reduce the potential impact on the public highway and accommodate the
efficient delivery of goods in accordance with paragraph 110 of the National Planning
Policy Framework.

Prior to the commencement of development, a surface water drainage scheme, which
shall incorporate Sustainable Urban Drainage System (SUDS) principles, shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall
include a programme for implementation of the works; and proposals for maintenance
and management. The development shall not be carried out unless in accordance with
the approved surface water drainage scheme.

Reason: To ensure sustainable drainage of the development, having regard to adopted
policy INF2 of the Joint Core Strategy (2017). Approval is required upfront because the
design of the drainage is an integral part of the development and its acceptability.

No external lighting shall be installed without prior written consent from the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of the character and appearance of the area, having regard to
saved policies CP7, GE5 and GEG6 of the Cheltenham Borough Local Plan (2006), and
adopted policies SD4 and INF3 of the Joint Core Strategy (2017).

The green roof shall be a meadow grass roof and shall not be sedum or any other plant
finish.

Reason: In the interests of the character and appearance of the area, having regard to
saved policies CP7, GE5 and GE6 of the Cheltenham Borough Local Plan (2006), and
adopted policies SD4 and INF3 of the Joint Core Strategy (2017).

INFORMATIVES

1

In accordance with the requirements of The Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 and the provisions of the NPPF, the
Local Planning Authority adopts a positive and proactive approach to dealing with
planning applications and where possible, will seek solutions to any problems that arise



Page 40

when dealing with a planning application with the aim of fostering the delivery of
sustainable development.

At the heart of this positive and proactive approach is the authority's pre-application
advice service for all types of development. Further to this however, the authority
publishes guidance on the Council's website on how to submit planning applications
and provides full and up-to-date information in relation to planning applications to
enable the applicant, and other interested parties, to track progress.

In this instance, the authority revisions to reduce the scale of the garage/annexe
building and re-positioning of the buildings to address tree related issues;

Following these negotiations, the application now constitutes sustainable development
and has therefore been approved in a timely manner.

The applicant is encouraged to engage with the councils tree officer at the time of tree
protection works being installed and would encourage the applicant to arrange a pre-
commencement site meeting involving the retained arboriculturist, Trees Officer and
site foreman to review acceptability of tree protection measures installed.

The LHA have no objection to the above subject to the applicant obtaining a section
184 licence. The construction of a new access will require the extension of a verge
and/or footway crossing from the carriageway under the Highways Act 1980 - Section
184 and the Applicant is required to obtain the permission of Gloucestershire Highways
on 08000 514 514 or highways@gloucestershire.gov.uk before commencing any works
on the highway.

The upgrade works to the accesses require alteration to the existing highway network
and must be undertaken by the Highway Authority or its appointed agents. An
Agreement under Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980 will be required. The Local
Highway Area office will need to be contacted prior to commencement of work on the
access. The applicant is also advised that it is an offence under section 161 of the
Highway Act 1980 to deposit anything on a highway the consequence of which a user
of the highway is injured or endangered. It is strongly recommended that during any
form of earthworks and/or excavations that are carried out as part of the development,
suitable vehicle wheel washing equipment should be provided and used within the site,
to prevent contamination and damage to the adjacent roads.



Page 41

APPLICATION NO: 19/02449/FUL

OFFICER: Mr Ben Hawkes

DATE REGISTERED: 18th December 2019

DATE OF EXPIRY : 12th February 2020

WARD: Battledown

PARISH: CHARLK

APPLICANT: | Mr And Mrs Gleeson
LOCATION: | Kyle Lodge, Greenway Lane, Charlton Kings
PROPOSAL: | Construction of a single 5-bedroom self and custom build dwelling with associated

buildings, landscaping, works and infrastructure

REPRESENTATIONS

Number of contributors 53
Number of objections 15
Number of representations 0
Number of supporting 38

7 Polefield Gardens

Cheltenham

Gloucestershire

GL51 6DY

Comments: 16th January 2020

It seems that AONB is now being totally ignored or disregarded. If the council follow the rules and

law then then application should be refused without hesitation.

Furthermore it is crystal clear that there are no other properties similar to this along Greenway
Lane and as such this house would stick out like a sore thumb!!! Seems that all the applicants

friends and family who are not closeby have supported this application!!

House looks very impressive but should not be built on a AONB piece of land but should be built

in a more appropriate area.

Surely this is an April Fools Joke??!!

Greenway Farm
Greenway Lane
Charlton Kings

Cheltenham

Gloucestershire

GL52 6PL

Comments: 12th February 2020

Letter attached.

14 Greenway Lane
Charlton Kings

Cheltenham

Gloucestershire

GL52 6LB




Page 42

Comments: 21st January 2020
| strongly object to this application.

| am very disappointed to read yet another application for garden infill on Greenway Lane.

Garden infill on Greenway Lane is becoming all too frequent and changing the fabric of the road.
With Sixways having a high polluting level the green spaces of Greenway Lane are very
important to counteract this and help neutralise its effect. Another property on the road will not
only take away green space, which is in fact AONB, but also add additional traffic to the road. At
peak times of the day Greenway Lane comes to a standstill due to the local and school traffic,
further congestion from yet another property will only add to the increasing levels of pollution.

We are very lucky on Greenway Lane to currently have a variety of bird species from Owls to
Jays and also deer, foxes etc with further development we will only see a decline in their
numbers. The health benefits of outside space i.e. gardens have been well documented and
therefore should have a higher importance placed on them.

Whilst we are living with a climate crisis yet another development which removes green space is
not going to help.

The Gray House
Harp Hill
Cheltenham
GL52 6PR

Comments: 3rd February 2020
Letter attached.

High Grove
Greenway Lane
Charlton Kings
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 6LA

Comments: 20th February 2020

| wish to object to the proposal for construction of a large 5-bedroomed house in the plot
associated with Kyle Lodge on Greenway Lane. | object on grounds of visual intrusion into an
existing attractive rural setting, and because | believe that the project would represent a very
damaging step in the further suburbanisation of the AONB in an especially sensitive location.

| believe that the upper stretches of Greenway Lane, beyond the suburban fringe, currently
possess a rural character entirely in harmony with the rest of the thinly developed Hambrook
valley. The traditional buildings of Greenway Farm and Kyle Lodge alongside the Lane in no way
detract from that character, not least because they are the only buildings that can create a
significant visual impact along the route. | would object to any further residential development
along the part of the Lane above The Chase, but in this specific case of the Kyle Lodge proposal |
have a particular view that the 21st Century architecture and bulk of the proposed building would
fail totally to harmonise with the Lodge and the Greenway Farm house.

It seems to me that this small but extremely beautiful part of the Cotswolds AONB is currently
under attack from various developers of very large homes. Supporters of these developments
can readily be found from all around Cheltenham and beyond, but if the Planning Committee
determines this proposal acceptable - on its own merits - as was the case with Cromwell Court,
then there will soon be another proposal to deal with and then another, and another. Unless a line



Page 43

is drawn, agricultural land will eventually become suburban sprawl, and we will have destroyed
something of enormous value to future generations. Even the residents of the new multi-million-
pound homes may be disillusioned.

5 The Corse
Walnut Bank Drive
Teddington
GL20 8WB

Comments: 15th January 2020

| write in order to support the above application. | have lived in Cheltenham for many years and
frequently spend time at the Charlton Kings Cricket club. The surrounding area is beautiful and |
believe that this contemporary, modern, and beautifully designed house will enhance the area
further. The proposed plans seem to have been sensitively designed to minimize the visual impct
on the surrounding landscape.

85 Leckhampton Road
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire

GL53 0BS

Comments: 15th January 2020

| write in order to support the above application. | have lived in Cheltenham for many years and
frequently spend time at the Charlton Kings Cricket club. The surrounding area is beautiful and |
believe that this contemporary, modern, and beautifully designed house will enhance the area
further. The proposed plans seem to have been sensitively designed to minimize the visual impct
on the surrounding landscape.

Clarence Villa
Clarence Square
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL50 4JP

Comments: 15th January 2020

| write in order to support the above application. | have lived in Cheltenham for many years and
frequently walk in the fields off Greenway lane with my dog. The proposed plans seem to have
been sensitively designed to minimize the visual impact on the surrounding landscape. |
particularly like the architectural design of the new dwelling and believe it's contemporary design
is of the highest quality.

Greenside
Oakley Road
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 6NZ

Comments: 15th January 2020

| sih to offer my full support for this application. | am a resident in Battledown and therefore a
reasonably close neighbour of the residents of Kyle Lodge. The design of this house is a very
appealing and | am sure it will add to the architectural pedigree of the surrounding area.



Page 44

North Farm House
Shipton Oliffe
GL54 4JQ

Comments: 15th January 2020

As a resident in Cheltenham area for many years | know the Battledown area and Greenway lane
well. There seems to be lots of new houses being built iin the vicinity and the GREENOAKS
development looks to me a fabulous addition! It is an exciting, modern house which seems to be
in keeping with other houses currently under construction.

42 Gratton Road
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL50 2BY

Comments: 15th January 2020

I've been living in Cheltenham for a good many years now. | feel | know the Battledown area and
Greenway Lane very well. I've always been impressed by the number of exciting new houses
being built iin the area. | strongly feel the Greenoaks development would be an exciting addition.
It's an interesting, modern house certainly in keeping with other houses currently under
construction.

75 Read Way
Bishops Cleeve
GL52 8EL

Comments: 15th January 2020

| write in order to support the above application. | have lived in Cheltenham all my life. Love
seeing new modern properties being built in the town. | have the design which | feel that it is
beautifully designed and will enhance the area.

73 Painswick Road
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL50 2EX

Comments: 15th January 2020

| write in order to support the above application. Building a new house iin such a large garden
seems a sensible idea and good use of the space. The design is sympathetic to the surrounding
area and | really like the modern look of the house.

5 Sandford Court
Humphris Place
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL53 7FA

Comments: 15th January 2020
I know the oners of 'Kyle Lodge' and have reviewed their proposed plans of designing and
building a new development within their grounds.

This is an exciting and economically friendly project, and I'm in full support of this proposal.



Page 45

Turnpike House
Greenway Lane
Charlton Kings
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 6PW

Comments: 28th February 2020

As a resident of Greenway Lane | wwrite to support the above proposal. | have discussed the
plans with the owners of Kyle Lodge and it is clear that extensive thought has gone into designing
a property that is sensitive to the area.

| fully support the application.

3 Water Lane
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 6YD

Comments: 14th January 2020

| am in support of this application. | reside in Charlton Kings, within a mile of the proposed
building, and frequently visit that area to use the cricket club and for walking or leisure. | am
therefore familiar with the site and believe that the proposed building is excellent use of land and
that the design will compliment the area. The plot is a large piece of land and can easily sustain
two significant properties.

Haytor

65 Harp Hill

Charlton Kings Cheltenham
Gloucestershire

GL52 6PR

Comments: 19th January 2020
We would like to object to the application 19/02449/FUL for Kyle Lodge, Greenway Lane,
Charlton Kings, Cheltenham GL52 6PN.

Kyle Lodge sits in the Cotswolds AONB, which is protected land around Cheltenham. It is part of
the appeal of Cheltenham and this area and has been designated as AONB for this reason.

We feel very strongly about building on AONB land. Cheltenham has a plan for new housing and
this does not form part of it. Kyle Lodge is typical of the large properties around this area that sit
in a substantial plot. We feel strongly that the properties in this area should not be given
permission to reduce their gardens in order to build more houses (sadly this has already
happened at Cromwell Court, also on Greenway Lane and also part of the AONB).

Greenway Lane is a country lane with no transport links, no footpaths and no cycle lanes,
meaning travel by car will be essential, thus increasing traffic and impacting the environment.

This area is used by walkers, runners, cyclists and horse riders because of its beauty and if
houses are allowed to be built on this land, increased traffic, pollution and the destruction of
wildlife will spoil it.



Page 46

97 Montpellier Terrace
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire

GL50 1XA

Comments: 22nd January 2020
| have looked through these plans and can see no issues - the building design is entirely in
keeping with the successful planning application for Cromwell Court.

Also - to those comments on the AONB - while the area might be an area of natural beauty, the
garden where the proposed dwelling would be is a brownfield site.

43 Birdlip Road
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 5AJ

Comments: 5th February 2020
| object to this application 19/02449/FUL for the following reasons:

This proposal is for a very large contemporary designed building in the Cotswolds Area of
Outstanding Natural Beauty, AONB. The building would impose on its immediate neighbourhood
and particularly on the adjacent public footpath where it would take away the PROW's openness.
This style of house is not in keeping with other properties in the AONB along Greenway Lane and
would be better suited to a more urban environment. Development proposals in the AONB must,
by policy, enhance and conserve the landscape and scenic beauty, this proposal fails in this
regard. This is a speculative proposal.

The result of the proposal on the various landscape characters and visual effects will have no
enhancing attributes contrary to NPPF para 172 which states: "Great weight should be given to
conserving and enhancing landscape and scenic beauty in National Parks, the Broads and Areas
of Outstanding Natural Beauty, which have the highest status of protection in relation to these
issues", and to JCS SD7 where "All development proposals in or within the setting of the
Cotswolds AONB will be required to conserve and, where appropriate, enhance its landscape,
scenic beauty, wildlife, cultural heritage and other special qualities. Proposals will be required to
be consistent with the policies set out in the Cotswolds AONB Management Plan."

| agree that in isolation the structure could be considered good design. However, it is not a design
sensitive to its proposed location and will not enhance its locale or its near or far environment. It
is bold, visually loud and out of context. It fails saved Policy CP7(c): "Development will only be
permitted where it complements and respects neighbouring development and the character of the
locality and/or landscape." and NPPF 127(c): "Planning policies and decisions should ensure that
developments are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built
environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging appropriate innovation
or change (such as increased densities);"

Some reliance is placed on this site being classed as "Brownfield" and effective use of land
should be considered as outlined in NPPF 117. However, the caveat in footnote 44 applies as
there is conflict in this application with other policies in the framework, NPPF 172 is one example,
therefore NPPF 117 cannot be relied upon in this case.

Para 5.27 of the applicant's supporting planning statement confirms that there will be no positive
effect on landscape character even after mitigation measures have become effective and also, at
para 5.28, only non-positive visual effects will be present, ranging from neutral to major negative.



Page 47

This proposal is for inappropriate development in the AONB which will have severe adverse
effects on the natural and local environment even with mitigation measures in place. Overall the
proposal will have no positive conserving or enhancing effect on landscape character, visual
amenity or scenic beauty and will amount to a loss of openness and local distinctiveness in this
area of the Cotswolds AONB. Policy dictates that in these areas great weight in regard to
conserving and enhancing landscape and scenic beauty must be given. Because of these
adverse effects on the character and appearance of the area, JCS SD7 and NPPF 172 provides
clear reason for refusing the proposed development.

3 Eldorado Crescent
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL50 2PY

Comments: 11th February 2020
Letter attached.

33 Hillary Road
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL539LB

Comments: 11th February 2020
Letter attached.

12 Charlton Park Gate
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire

GL53 OHL

Comments: 13th February 2020
| write to offer my full SUPPORT for the following property:

Planning application: 19/02449/FUL, Kyle Lodge, Greenway Lane, Charlton Kings.

| totally support the above planning application. As a home owner in Charlton Kings and frequent
user of Greenway Lane | feel the the above proposition would be an exciting addition to the Lane
and would enhance the area.

Documented evidence on the CBC website from professionals that have clearly spent hours
examining the site, concludes that the application complies with CBC planning regulations. The
Council have welcomed and permitted the development of the brownfield site at Cromwell Court
on Greenway Lane, and | hope that they will also back the development of the brownfield site at
Kyle Lodge -this design is of high architectural quality and will set an example of what suits
Cheltenham, to be taken into the next decade.

1 Tommy Taylors Lane
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire

GL50 4NR

Comments: 13th February 2020



Page 48

| am a long term resident of Cheltenham and have agri-environment responsibilities within the
Cotswold AONB.

| know this plot of land. There are plenty of local examples where more than one house has been
squeezed onto considerably smaller garden plots. In this case, the request is for a single dwelling
on a large plot, which seems eminently appropriate.

The design is not dissimilar to a number of dwellings that have been built in and around
Cheltenham such as Prestbury and Cleeve Hill including within the AONB. The design appears to
be eco-friendly and every effort has been made to keep it private. Its shielded location means that
it has very little impact on the surrounding area; if built, | doubt that the general public would be
particularly aware of its existence after a few months.

The properties in this area have no consistent architectural design; it is therefore perfectly
reasonable to build something that is different, after all the current dwellings are probably
different to their predecessors.

| have not read anything that suggests that the new dwelling would have an adverse impact on
the environment.

In summary, | support this application.

The Coach House
10 Oxford Passage
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL50 4DL

Comments: 14th February 2020
We are amused by the level of support for this application from people who are not in the vicinity!

| do hope the planners take note of this, it seems every supporting comment is from another part
of Cheltenham, the comments of which are in some cases merely copy and paste of other
messages.

One can only assume they are all friends and family of the applicants as why else would so many
pro supporters be so vocal about this one particular application when they don't live on Greenway
Lane.

The comments that count, ie the neighbours are all objecting, planners take note!!!

Reservoir Lodge
Harp Hill
Charlton Kings
Cheltenham
GL52 6PP

Comments: 6th March 2020
Letter attached.



Page 49

Dewerstone Cottage
Christowe Lane
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL53 7AQ

Comments: 10th January 2020
| write in order to support the above application. | believe that the proposed development is an
impressive architectural design.

131 Hales Road
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 6ST

Comments: 10th January 2020
| write in order to support the above application. | believe that the proposed development is an
impressive architectural design.

298 Stroud Road
Gloucester
GL4 0DG

Comments: 10th January 2020
| write in order to support the above application. | believe that the proposed development is an
impressive architectural design.

Clive Lodge
Wellington Square
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL50 4JS

Comments: 10th January 2020

| write in order to support the above application. | have lived in Cheltenham for many years and
frequently walk in the fields off Greenway lane with my dog. The proposed plans seem to have
been sensitively designed to minimize the visual impact on the surrounding landscape. |
particularly like the architectural design of the new dwelling and believe it's contemporary design
is of the highest quality.

325 Old Bath Road
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL53 9AJ

Comments: 10th January 2020

| write in order to support the above application. | have lived in Cheltenham for many years and
frequently walk in the fields off Greenway lane with my dog. The proposed plans seem to have
been sensitively designed to minimize the visual impact on the surrounding landscape. |
particularly like the architectural design of the new dwelling and believe it's contemporary design
is of the highest quality.



Page 50

3 Glynrosa Road
Charlton Kings
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL53 8QR

Comments: 10th January 2020
As a resident of Charlton Kings, | have been made aware of this proposal and have looked at the
computer generated images of the new house. Kyle Lodge has a very large garden and this
single dwelling in the garden of Kyle Lodge will be a positive development for Greenway Lane. |
really like the contemporary design of the house which seems to be in keeping with other houses
currently being built in the area.

257 Cirencester Road
Charlton Kings
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL53 8EB

Comments: 10th January 2020
As a resident of Charlton Kings, | have been made aware of this proposal and have looked at the
computer generated images of the new house. Kyle Lodge has a very large garden and this
single dwelling in the garden of Kyle Lodge will be a positive development for Greenway Lane. |
really like the contemporary design of the house which seems to be in keeping with other houses
currently being built in the area.

32 Greenway Lane
Charlton Kings
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 6LB

Comments: 10th January 2020

| write in order to support the above application. | am a resident on Greenway lane and a close
neighbour of the residents of Kyle Lodge. | have reviewed the planning application and
supporting information online. 1 like the architectural design of the new dwelling and believe it's
contemporary design and high quality are in keeping with the Battledown 'ethos'.

12 St Michaels Close
Charlton Kings
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL53 9DW

Comments: 10th January 2020

| write in order to support the above application. Building a new house in such a large garden
seems a sensible idea and a good use of the space. The design is sympathetic to the
surrounding area and | really like the modern look of the house.



Page 51

Baedalas Tun
Ashley Road
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 6PJ

Comments: 10th February 2020
I have grown up and lived in this part of Charlton Kings for more than fifty years. | strongly object
to this application and concur with all of the well-documented objections already raised.

The proposal is for a large brand new three-storey contemporary house and a double-storey
garage with further living accommodation above in the middle of an area of AONB which has
remained unspoilt for many years. The site lies within the rural fringe of Cheltenham which acts
as a natural barrier to the town; it serves as a pleasing contrast to the busy Sixways end of
Greenway Lane which is very different in character.

o It is outside of the PUA and entirely within the AONB and therefore not part of the Town
Plan.

o Cheltenham has precious little AONB on its fringes - that which we do have we should
value and protect.

o The proposed building is not appropriate in this semi-rural location - such a contemporary
build would alter the character of the lane as the few buildings in the vicinity are of a
traditional type and are very scattered.

o Itis too large, too modern, not in keeping.

o It would not 'enhance' - rather it would have an 'adverse' effect on the surrounding
landscape character.

o Adverse effects come about not only from a loss of openness but also from a change in
landscape 'character'.

o Users of the footpath would be VERY affected - note Charlton Kings' Parish Council's
concerns regarding the large double-storey building which would be adjacent to the
footpath.

o The proposals would lead to both adverse landscape and visual change in the local area.
This is in conflict with JCS Policy SD7 as it neither 'conserves' nor 'enhances’ the natural
beauty of this nationally designated area and it is also at odds with the objectives of the
Cotswold AONB Management Plan.

o It would create a precedent for further attempts to develop in this lovely location.

o I do not believe that any new build - unless perhaps it is a better replacement for one being
demolished - can be considered to be 'conserving' or 'enhancing' the AONB, no matter
how many pages of arguments are put forward.

It seems incredible to me that such a completely modern house which is much more suited to an
urban environment could be considered to be viable here. Because a house is built in Cotswold
stone and has a grass roof does not in my mind conjure up compatibility with the scattered
nearby dwellings. Grass roofs seem to be the current trend in these situations and while on a
plan they may sound like a good idea, in reality they are very hard to maintain - they are not
always indigenous and often look a total mess, thereby having the opposite effect to that which is
intended.

The application implies that the area is quite built up with references to the Battledown Estate
suggesting there is a connection between this contemporary design and some of the houses
there. But the Estate is a historically unique private estate which is not in the AONB and therefore
is not bound by its rules. Instead, residents abide by its own regulations overseen by the



Page 52

Trustees. For non residents the core of the estate is only accessed via Battledown Approach
which is off Hales Road and there are three other gated access roads for residents only. For
those who do not live on the estate therefore there is a definite disconnect between these two
areas and therefore no comparison to contemporary housing there stands up. Battledown Manor
which is a large very traditional house (formerly The Knowle) is also mentioned and Kyle Lodge is
at the bottom of its drive. Neither of these two houses are now nor ever were part of the
Battledown Estate.

| am led to understand that most, if not all, of the local residents who would be most affected by
this proposed development are quite strongly opposed to it. It seems to me that most, if not all, of
those supporting the application are friends and colleagues of the applicants many of whom do
not live in the immediate area and who may well have been unaware that the proposed site is in
the middle of land which has been protected by its AONB status for many years. This is a
particularly relevant point as the majority of the comments supporting the application were
submitted before it was noticed that the AONB status had been omitted from the online
Constraints section. This important error has since been duly amended.

It would be a sad day for local residents if this application is granted. We are blessed to live so
close to the massively popular Cleeve Hill -Greenway Lane actually leads to it - and our country
lanes are loved by walkers, runners, cyclists, horse riders, dog walkers alike, all seeking the
peace and harmony of the countryside. | fervently believe we have a huge responsibility to
preserve this valuable legacy for future generations to enjoy and that although there is a pressing
need for new 'affordable’ housing, it should not take priority over protecting our environment.

Ryeworth Fields

Greenway Lane, Charlton Kings
Cheltenham

GL50 9TA

Comments: 27th January 2020
Our cricket club is one of the nearest sites to the proposed development and | am supportive of
the plans.

The proposed changes to access will provide further parking space on Greenway Lane which can
become congested at peak times and when the cricket club is in use. The plans to include
pavement upgrades and resurfacing is also much needed and will contribute to improving safety
on the road, particularly for children accessing the ground.

The agreed plans for the development are an example of exciting modern architecture that will
add to the already diverse collection of buildings on Greenway Lane. Additionally, the plan to split
a two acre plot into separate properties seems a perfectly reasonable use of the land.

| can see no reason for this development to be denied permission considering the consent given
to other developments in the area in recent years.

CKCC committee member.

12 Greenway Lane
Charlton Kings
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 6LB

Comments: 24th January 2020
The site is in an existing garden and the design looks great.



Page 53

Comments: 10th January 2020
This seems a sensible use of the large garden and would not impact other dwellings. Also the
contemporary design is much better than other recent developments in Greenway Lane

10 Greenway Lane
Charlton Kings
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 6LB

Comments: 15th January 2020

| fully support this application. As a resident of Greenway Lane | am very familiar with Kyle
Lodge. | have reviewed the planning application and like the architectural design of the new
dwelling. | believe the contemporary design is very in keeping with Battledown and Greenway
Lane

16 Greenway Lane
Charlton Kings
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 6LB

Comments: 26th February 2020
| write in support of Planning Application 19/02449/FUL.

As long residing residents of Greenway lane, my wife and | have seen many changes to the road
over the years. We have ourselves, had a house built in our once large garden and have seen
plenty of newly built modern houses in our immediate vicinity.

The owners of Kyle Lodge have visited us and taken the time to explain their development to us.
We discussed the name of their planning proposal 'Green Oaks'. This obviously clashes with the
name of our house (they had no idea our house was called that) and Mr Gleeson has assured us
that he will rename his new house proposal. We are entirely satisfied with this.

We have looked at the computer-generated images of the modern development within the garden
of Kyle lodge on what | believe is a brownfield site. It is obvious that great care and attention has
gone into the design of this house in order to maintain and indeed enhance the natural beauty of
the area. One additional house on Greenway Lane will have, in our opinion, no detrimental
effects on local traffic or wildlife.

We totally support this application and believe that it will not be detrimental to the area as it will
be partially hidden by the hedge around the garden of Kyle Lodge and will not be greatly noticed
by people passing by.

312 Old Bath Road
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL53 9AP

Comments: 15th January 2020
From conversations with the current owners, | am aware of the planning application to build a
new home on the site of their current property - Kyle Lodge.



Page 54

| have visited the property many times and | think that plot can easily accommodate another
property.

I have reviewed the computer generated images of the proposed developemnt - The Greenoaks.
| think that it makes great use of the area, is in keeping with other houses being built in the area
and will, | understand, make use of the latest ecological building techniques and materials.

Therefore, | am providing this letter as a record of my support for this proposal.

The Chase
Greenway Lane
Charlton Kings
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 6PN

Comments: 21st January 2020
| am very concerned about the possibility that that council will allow this house to be built in a
clearly defined AONB area.

If this house is given planning permission then this AONB area is doomed as all the other fields
and gardens along this road will be making applications.

The level of people supporting this building really has little or no credibility as the majority if not all
of them are not residents of the local area, one has to wonder why so many non neigbours are so
vocal in their support, | wonder if they would feel the same if they were actually nearby. For
anyone to suggest this house is in keeping with the area is being ridiculous.

As one of the closest homeowners to this proposed development, we are strongly against this
application.

Hallam Oaks
Greenway Lane
Charlton Kings
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 6PN

Comments: 3rd January 2020

I am in receipt of your planning notification, 19/02449/FUL, received on 23rd December 2019.
You were unavailable when | rang your department on 27th Decemer, to ask a couple of
questions concerning this matter, therefore I list them below:

1) 10th January 2020 being the deadline date for comments to be submitted leaves very little
time (including the Christmas and New Year holidays) to research this matter. Is this the legal
requirement? However, | was informed that this date was being extended to 27th January 2020,
as you had directed 'site’ notices to be erected. To date, | have seen no sign of same.
Therefore, would you please confirm, by return, what the correct deadline date is as time is
rapidly passing by for the public to assess fairly.

2) Under "related items" on your schedule, would you please clarify why, "Green Oaks,
Greenway Lane, Charlton Kings, Cheltenham GL52 6LB" is listed as one of the two properties
involved? | have never heard of this particular address in Greenway Lane and | would appreciate
you informing me where it is to be located.



Page 55

Comments: 12th February 2020
Letter attached.

Greenacres Farm
Greenway Lane
Charlton Kings
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 6PN

Comments: 12th February 2020
Letter attached.

Comments: 13th February 2020
We obiject to this application in its applied form. The buildings are far too box like and rigid in
design, they closely resemble the modern style of commercial buildings.

This application is not innovative in design. Merely a close copy of the many "Of our time"
structures appearing on the landscape. It offers no architectural merits, other than being a mass
of glass and stone clad box shapes, positioned to form a structure. It would appear alien to Kyle
lodge and opposite neighbour Greenway farm.

The designated position on this site is very one sided, against the west boundary, especially the
garage/flat let block.

Greenacres farm driveway and the public footpath follow a line alongside this boundary; the
driveway also gives access to Hallam Oaks, and 2 others. The boundary is formed by post and
rail fence and deciduous hedging with gaps. Due to the leaf loss in the autumn and winter
months, any development on the Kyle Lodge site would result in a high visual impact to walkers
on the public footpath, and the wheeled users of the driveway.

Landscape Visual Appraisal report. The superimposed views:-

o Shows Vewpoint.15. looking north east from the highway with the veteran ancient oak T9
(54) in the foreground, this view of the garage/flatlet block would be very overbearing,
closely resembling 2 stacked porta cabins.

At this point in Greenway Lane/Greenacres driveway, the receptor level for pedestrians,
cyclists, and passing motorists would be more high than medium.

o Shows Viewpoint 17.looking south down Greenacres Farm driveway, and the public
footpath, with the superimposed view of the two proposed buildings .This view would be
extremely overbearing against the skyline, and completely alien to the landscape.

o Lva report page 19 states, The aim is to avoid or minimize the amount of material going of
site. The creation of a curved bank at the northern end.

The subsoil of this site is heavy clay, considering the application shows a lower ground floor
construction, a considerable amount of spoil would be excavated. If this is used to create a
curved bank this would form a non-porous barrier and prevent the natural run off from the
higher ground, because of the lie of the land. This would divert the natural run off on to our
property, and exacerbate the problem we already have with the run off during the not so
uncommon periods of heavy rainfall



Page 56

o The C.B.C. tree report shows the concern over the siting of the garage/flatlet block with
regards to the root protection radius of our veteran oak T9 (54) .This is the largest of the
oaks on or near the site, and is of great age.

This application is outside the Principal urban area and well within the AONB.

We share the comments made by the owners of The Chase, who also understand the "Green
way" of Greenway lane.

Only a few weeks ago an application 19/01252/Ful also in the AONB and outside PUA and
adjoining the public footpath and only 50 meters from the North West Kyle lodge boundary. This
application was refused.

Inches

Birchley Road
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 6NX

Comments: 20th January 2020

| wish to offer my full support for this application. | am a resident in Battledown and therefore a
reasonably close neighbour of the residents of Kyle Lodge. The design of this house is a very
applealing and | am sure it will add to the architectural pedigree of the surrounding area.

106 Ryeworth Road
Charlton Kings
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 6LX

Comments: 20th January 2020

| write in order to support the above application. | have lived in Cheltenham for many years and
frequently walk in the fields off Greenway lane with my dog. The proposed plans seem to have
been sensitively designed to minimize the visual impact on the surrounding landscape. |
particularly like the architectural design of the new dwelling and believe it's contemporary design
is of the highest quality.

18 Greenhills Road
Charlton Kings
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL53 9EB

Comments: 20th January 2020

| write in order to support the above application. Building a new house in such a large garden
seems a sensible idea and a good use of the space. The design is sympathetic to the
surrounding area and | really like the modern look of the house.

70 Sandy Lane
Charlton Kings
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL53 9DH



Page 57

Comments: 11th February 2020

| would like to support this application. As a resident of Charlton Kings with children who play
cricket at the local club on Greenway Lane, | think this proposal is well designed and forward
thinking while remaining sympathetic to the surrounding area.

The Greenoaks proposal is a good use of the large existing (brownfield) garden to create a
sensitively designed family home that will have minimal visual impact on the road. The design is
in keeping with many houses in the immediate area and will not diminish the beauty of Greenway
Lane in any way.

Cromwell Court

Greenway Lane

Charlton Kings Cheltenham
Gloucestershire

GL52 6PW

Comments: 13th January 2020
| write in support of the application.

| am very much of the opinion that the proposed development will improve the site, which
currently has a very large and under utilised plot. | have looked through the design proposals and
feel that they are sympathetic to the landscape. | note that there is a comprehensive impact
assessment for the proposal.

The design looks appropriate and is no different to the other developments in the vicinity.

36 Greenway Lane
Charlton Kings
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 6LB

Comments: 13th January 2020
I'm writing to support the proposal for the above application.

The proposed scheme is sympathetic with the surrounding area & is in keeping with other houses
that have been built / are being built in the area.

41 Charlton Close
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL53 8DH

Comments: 14th January 2020
As members of Charlton Kings Cricket Club and regular dog walkers in this area, we have
reviewed this planning application.

We are in agreement that the design is sympathetic to the local area and nearby houses and will
not detract from natural beauty of its surroundings.

We have no objections and are happy to support this application.



Page 58

High View

Harp Hill

Charlton Kings Cheltenham
Gloucestershire

GL52 6PR

Comments: 26th January 2020

We object to this application. It is yet another erosion of the integrity of the AONB, an important
designation for the appeal of Cheltenham yet which seems to diminish in importance with every
new building application that gets approved within it.

Additionally, Greenway Lane simply cannot cope with any more traffic - last Friday afternoon it
already felt like | was walking my dog along the M5, not the pleasure it ought to be.

14 Greenway Lane
Charlton Kings
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 6LB

Comments: 21st January 2020
| would like to object to this application.

The site is located in the Cotswolds AONB, in an essentially rural location. The existing property
is surrounded by fields on all sides, bar the single neighbouring Greenway Farm dwelling.

Cheltenham Borough Council's own Landscape Character and Sensitivity Assessment (April
2015) classified this location (Greenway Wooded Pasture Slopes) as having a Low capacity for
development, with High landscape sensitivity, Medium-High visual sensitivity and High landscape
value.

Whilst planning applications may have to be considered individually, without prejudice to future
applications, it is undeniable that permission to build in this case would only make future
applications more likely in this sensitive vicinity. Indeed the applicant themselves informed me
they were encouraged and emboldened to make this application by the permission granted in
2019 for development at Cromwell Court.

Whilst this application in isolation might seem acceptable, it chips away at the edges of the AONB
and creates a context for further development. The aggregate effect of such incremental erosion
to the AONB would not be acceptable.

In practical terms, | also question the suitability and sustainability of the local facilities to support
yet more development. The state of the road surface along Greenway Lane is already disgraceful
and dangerous. With absence of pavements and public transport this plan would be guaranteed
to result in another 4 vehicles regularly on the road. Local doctors and schools are already over-
stretched. These things need addressing if development continues to be permitted at the current
rate in this area.

Lastly, | note the homogeneity of the supporting public comments and their means of submission,
with a highly questionable similarity to the pattern of comments submitted for the nearby
Cromwell Court application in 2019.



Page 59

Cherry Court
Ashley Road
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 6PJ

Comments: 25th January 2020

| am concerned that the semi rural nature of the site will be changed to one of a domesticated
residential use. The application is the latest in a series of residential applications in and around
Greenway Lane and the rear slopes of Battledown hill that have the cumulative affect of eroding
this unique gentle semi rural land that runs along Greenway Lane. The incremental urbanisation
of this marginal land should not be supported in either the interest of the AONB, general public
amenity or conservation of a range of protected species who use this undeveloped corridor. The
increased development of the area will remove that which makes this a special part of Charlton
Kings, something that is recognised both regionally and nationally as of benefit to the town
overall.

In particular the development does not conserve or enhance the site. The existing dwelling that is
Kyle Lodge sits most peacefully in the landscape but the development in the garden increases
the level of human activity demands on the land twofold and does not maintain the scattered and
sporadic nature of human activity in the lane.

The development will have a negative impact on the land which outweighs any benefit to be had
by increasing the density of dwellings in such a sensitive site.
Friends of Oakley Farm Pasture Slopes

Comments: 21% January 2020
Letter attached.



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6¢

Page 77
APPLICATION NO: 20/00154/FUL OFFICER: Mr Ben Hawkes
DATE REGISTERED: 29th January 2020 DATE OF EXPIRY: 25th March 2020
DATE VALIDATED: 29th January 2020 DATE OF SITE VISIT:
WARD: Battledown PARISH: Charlton Kings

APPLICANT: | Newbay Consulting Ltd

AGENT: SF Planning Limited

LOCATION: | Oakfield House Stables, Oakfield House, Greenway Lane

PROPOSAL: | Erection of a single self-build dwelling following the demolition of existing
stables (revised scheme)

RECOMMENDATION: Permit

S, - .

A SEE N TR

—
L

ttledown Hill wood

-

y

et :.-—'4/(:‘&

Tt

/ % - Tneqe}\/ //
(3 -
N //
e P
7\ /// R
e;dale House - -

Y o
2 H

\
‘ﬂelﬂ;)/ lll

_:T_-’#——\\\ ﬁa"’i”"" Playing Field
= gﬁh&ﬁ |
4 N l‘l
— | Atnietics Ground I l\]
N\
i T -

This site map is for reference purposes only. OS Crown Copyright. All rights reserved Cheltenham Borough Council 100024384 2007



Page 78
1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND PROPOSAL

1.1 The application site relates to an area of land associated with Oakfield House on
Greenway Lane, the land currently accommodates two single storey storage/stable
buildings. The application site is located outside of the Principle Urban Area (PUA) and is
within the Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB).

1.2 The applicant is seeking planning permission for the erection of a self-build dwelling
following the demoilition of the existing stables. This application is a revised scheme to an
application recently refused at planning committee, previous application number
19/012252/FUL.

1.3 The application is at planning committee at the request of Councillor McCloskey as the
previous application on this site was decided at planning committee.

2. CONSTRAINTS AND RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

Constraints:

Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty
Airport safeguarding over 15m
Residents Associations

Relevant Planning History:
19/01252/FUL  23rd October 2019 REF
Erection of a single self-build dwelling following the demolition of existing stables.

3. POLICIES AND GUIDANCE

National Planning Policy Framework

Section 2 Achieving sustainable development

Section 4 Decision-making

Section 5 Delivering a sufficient supply of homes

Section 11 Making effective use of land

Section 12 Achieving well-designed places

Section 15 Conserving and enhancing the natural environment
Section 16 Conserving and enhancing the historic environment

Saved Local Plan Policies

CP 2 Sequential approach to location of development
CP 4 Safe and sustainable living

CP 7 Design

GE 5 Protection and replacement of trees

GE 6 Trees and development

Adopted Joint Core Strategy Policies

SP1 The Need for New Development

SP2 Distribution of New Development

SD3 Sustainable Design and Construction

SD4 Design Requirements

SD6 Landscape

SD7 The Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty
SD8 Historic Environment

SD9 Biodiversity and Geodiversity




Page 79

SD10 Residential Development

SD11 Housing Mix and Standards
SD14 Health and Environmental Quality
INF1 Transport Network

Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents
Development on garden land and infill sites in Cheltenham (2009)
Cotswold AONB Management Plan

CONSULTATIONS

Campaign To Protect Rural England
7th February 2020

This is a revised proposal to build a dwelling on this site following 19/01252/FUL which was
refused by the Borough Planning Committee. CPRE made no response to this earlier
application only because it was not aware of it.

CPRE objects to the application which seeks to replace derelict farm buildings (which it is
misleading to refer to as stables) with a sizeable residential dwelling for the following
reasons.

° The site lies in the Cotswolds AONB. The proposals conflict with the NPPF which,
at paragraph 172, says "Great weight should be given to conserving and enhancing
landscape and scenic beauty in ... Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty". Likewise,
Policy SD7 of the Joint Core Strategy states: "All development proposals in or within
the setting of the Cotswolds AONB will be required to conserve and, where
appropriate, enhance its landscape, scenic beauty, wildlife, cultural heritage and
other special qualities. Proposals will be required to be consistent with the policies
set out in the Cotswolds AONB Management Plan."

° The site lies outside the Principal Urban Area of Cheltenham in an area which is
essentially rural in character. The site was formerly part of nearby Greenacre Farm
and is separated both from Battledown and from other parts of Charlton Kings by
open fields. It is not connected to any other development and so cannot be
regarded as urban brownfield land.

o The site lies in an area of highly sensitive and valued landscape. A Landscape
Character, Sensitivity and Capacity Assessment of the Cotswolds AONB within the
Cheltenham Borough Administrative Area was commissioned by Cheltenham
Borough Council and reported in April 2015. This site falls within Landscape
Character Area 10.11, 'Greenway Wooded Farmed Slopes'. This area was
assessed to have a Medium-High visual sensitivity, High landscape sensitivity and
High Landscape Value, indicating that its landscape capacity for development is
Low.

° There is a well-used public right of way adjacent to the application site. Any
development therefore would have a damaging effect on views from the footpath, as
well as from further afield.

o The box-like design of the proposed dwelling, while not quite as intrusive as the
previous design, remains significantly out of keeping with its environment. The
dwelling still occupies a very large footprint and while the green roof is
commendable it will do nothing to ameliorate its appearance when viewed from
ground level.

. The area where the site lies is part of the rural fringe of Cheltenham which acts as a
natural barrier to the town. This is an area which has been robustly defended from
development in the past. There is already an application for a new house adjacent
to nearby Kyle Lodge (19/02449/FUL). And the submission shows that the
applicant already owns the open fields between the application site and Battledown



Page 80

are in the same ownership. If approved, therefore, the proposed development
would be a catalyst for further applications to develop the surrounding area which
lies within the Cotswolds AONB.

e CPRE urges the Borough Council to refuse this application. Should the Planning
Officers recommend approval, we request that the application be referred to the
Council Planning Committee for a decision.

Cheltenham Civic Society
2nd March 2020

OBJECT

The Civic Society Planning Forum objects strongly to this proposed development within the
AONB, which would adversely affect the AONB and would be contrary to the AONB
Management Plan, the NPFF, JCS and Local Plan. The Forum endorses the comments by
CPRE and the Cotswold Conservation Board.

Our reasons for objection are exactly the same as those given by the Council for rejecting
the previous scheme on this site. The forum is concerned that the previous application
enjoyed the support of local authority officers, despite the AONB location and contrary to
the local authority's own planning policies regarding the AONB. Therefore, we ask that the
decision on this application be made by the council's planning committee.

Gloucestershire Centre For Environmental Records
5th February 2020

Biodiversity report available to view.

Cotswold Conservation Board
13th February 2020

The Board does not normally comment on planning applications for single dwellings.
However, we are concerned about the ongoing (sub)urbanisation of the Cotswolds AONB
around the east side of Battledown Hill, along Greenway Lane and its environs.

The Board does not have capacity to provide a full consultation response. However, we
would like to bring to your attention the following points and ask you to give these great
weight in your planning decisions:

o] Cheltenham Borough Council's landscape assessment of the Cotswolds AONB
within Cheltenham Borough, which identifies both these locations as high landscape
character sensitivity, high visual sensitivity, high overall landscape sensitivity, high
landscape value, major overall landscape constraint and low overall landscape capacity.
(Landscape Character, Sensitivity and Capacity Assessment of Cotswolds AONB within the
Cheltenham Borough Administrative Area).

o] The Cotswolds AONB Landscape Strategy & Guidelines, which identifies Landscape
Character Type 2 (Escarpment), in which these sites are located, as being very sensitive to
change.

o] Housing need within the Cotswolds AONB:



Page 81

- Policy CE12 of the Cotswolds AONB Management Plan, which states that development
in the Cotswolds AONB should be based on robust evidence of local need arising from
within the AONB ... Priority should be given to the provision of affordable housing

- the Government's Planning Practice Guidance states that AONBs should not normally be
considered suitable areas for accommodation unmet needs from adjoining (undesignated)
areas (i.e. the part of Cheltenham Borough outside the AONB).

o] The aspirations of Cheltenham Borough Council for the Battledown Road area at the
time of the AONB boundary review (see attached document).

GCC Highways Planning Liaison Officer
14th February 2020

No objection (subject to conditions)

No development shall take place, including any demolition works, until a construction
management plan or construction method statement has been submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved plan/statement shall be adhered to
throughout the demolition/construction period. The plan/statement shall provide for:

— 24 hour emergency contact number;

— Hours of operation;

— Parking of vehicle of site operatives and visitors (including measures taken to
ensure satisfactory access and movement for existing occupiers of neighbouring
properties during construction);

— Routes for construction traffic;

— Locations for loading/unloading and storage of plant, waste and construction
materials;

— Method of preventing mud being carried onto the highway;

— Measures to protect vulnerable road users (cyclists and pedestrians)

— Any necessary temporary traffic management measures;

— Arrangements for turning vehicles;

— Arrangements to receive abnormal loads or unusually large vehicles;

— Methods of communicating the Construction Management Plan to staff, visitors and
neighbouring residents and businesses.

Reason: In the interests of safe operation of the adopted highway in the lead into
development both during the demolition and construction phase of the development.
Required

Tree Officer
12th February 2020

In principal the Trees Section does not object to this application pending submission of
further information. Please could a Tree Protection Plan be submitted and agreed before
determination. Also on the landscaping plan (drawing no. 19097.102) the key lists 7 Betula
pendula to be planted but on the plan 8 new trees are labelled as Betula pendula, please
could the number of trees to be planted be clarified.



Page 82

Building Control
30th January 2020

The application will require Building Regulations approval. Please contact Cheltenham and
Tewkesbury Building Control on 01242 264321 for further information.

Parish Council
11th February 2020

No objection

Architects Panel
11th March 2020

Design Concept

The panel recognised that this building design was an improvement on the previously
refused design in that it was now a single storey dwelling and therefore had less impact on
its surroundings and the AONB.

Whilst there were many features of the design that were attractive, the panel had difficulty
understanding the site layout and in particular the two dry stone spine walls that are
prominent features of the house design but bear no relationship to the garden or the special
landscape features of the site. The panel felt the building plan looked like it was dropped
into the middle of the site in a somewhat haphazard way resulting in uncomfortable external
spaces.

The front elevation, which is the most important public view of the

building, is composed of low key relative banal outbuildings which the panel felt was
inappropriate in this setting.

Design Detail

The detailing of the building and choice of materials was generally liked and the panel
concluded that if the layout could be resolved to provide a more attractive frontage and
guality landscaped spaces around the house, it could support an amended design of similar
scale with fully worked out details.

Recommendation
Submit amended design layout.

5. PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS

51

52

Number of letters sent 9

Total comments received

Number of objections

Number of supporting

o|o|~N|~N|k

General comment

19 letters were sent to neighbouring properties or to people who had commented on the
previous application. In addition, whilst not a statutory requirement a site notice was also
displayed.

A total of 7 letters of objection have been received, the concerns raised have been
summarised but are not limited to the following:



Page 83

¢ Principle of a new dwelling in this location
e Impact on AONB

e Scale

6. OFFICER COMMENTS

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

Determining Issues

This application is a revised submission, which seeks to overcome the previous refusal
reason given by planning committee which related to the impact of the proposal on the
AONB. The previous application number 19/01252/FUL previously set out all the
considerations of the application which relate to the principle of a new dwelling, design,
impact on neighbouring amenity, impact on the AONB, impact on existing trees, highways
safety and impact on protected wildlife.

Previous application

The previous application was refused at planning committee in October 2019, the refusal
reason given at committee was as follows:

‘The local planning authority must give great weight to the conservation of the
landscape and scenic beauty of Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB)
pursuant to paragraph 172 of the National Planning Policy Framework. The
proposed development is for a large detached dwelling situated outside of the
Principle Urban Area (PUA), wholly within the AONB and adjacent to a public right
of way.

By virtue of the scale, mass and form of the proposed new dwelling, the
development would not conserve nor enhance the Cotswold AONB and would lead
to both adverse landscape and visual change in the local area, including negative
impacts on the Public Right of Way (PROW) to the immediate east of the site and
would alter the existing rural character of the site and surroundings. The
development would therefore be contrary to the NPPF (para 172), Joint Core
Strategy policy SD7, the Cotswold AONB Management Plan 2018-23 and the
relevant saved policies of the Local Plan.’

This application has therefore been submitted by the applicant in order to address the
above refusal reason, the officer comments below relate to this new application.

The site and its context

The application site is an area of land which is associated with Oakfield House on
Greenway Lane, the site currently comprises of two relatively dilapidated storage/stable
buildings and is located outside of the PUA and wholly within the AONB.

Directly adjacent to the application site is the neighbouring site occupied by ‘Greenacres
Farm’, but generally the immediate locality is open land with dispersed settlements which
are generally large detached buildings sat within generous plot sizes.

Principle
Whilst this is a new proposal, there have been no significant changes in policy or local

context since the previous application was determined that would result in officers
reaching a different conclusion regarding the principle of a new dwelling on this site.



6.11

6.12

6.13

6.14

6.15

6.16

6.17

6.18

Page 84

The application is being considered at a time where Cheltenham cannot demonstrate a 5
year housing land supply. The application site is located outside of Cheltenham’s PUA,
the proposal to erect a new dwelling on this site would therefore be contrary to JCS policy
SD10. However, as Cheltenham cannot currently demonstrate a 5 year housing land
supply, paragraph 11 of the NPPF becomes relevant.

Paragraph 11 of the NPPF sets out a presumption in favour of sustainable development.
In this instance, as Cheltenham cannot currently demonstrate a 5 year housing land
supply, paragraph 11 d) of the NPPF is applicable, this reads:

‘Where there are no relevant development plans, or the policies which are most important
for determining the application are out of date, permission should be granted unless:

i) the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of
particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development
proposed; or

i) any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh
the benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a
whole.’

In this instance the application site is wholly within the AONB; therefore whilst the councils
current position of being unable to demonstrate a 5 year housing land supply is relevant
and is a material consideration of the application the tilted balance is not applied and it
does not automatically assume a presumption in favour of development, which could be
the case if the site was not designated. The main test as to whether the principle of a
dwelling on this site is acceptable is whether it would result in any unacceptable harm on
the AONB and surrounding landscape character, this is discussed later in the report.

Impact on the AONB

The local authority has received a representation from the Cotswolds conservation board,
whilst the comment received is not detailed and does not give specific considerations of
the application it does highlight concerns and identifies key points that need to be taken
into account given the sensitivity of the site.

This revised application sees a significant reduction in the size, scale and mass of the
proposed new dwelling; this has been achieved by the removal of the first floor
accommaodation resulting in the proposal of a single storey flat roof dwelling, there is also
a reduction in overall footprint. Furthermore, the position of the dwelling in the plot has
been amended; the dwelling now sits further away from the adjacent public right of way.

The previous application was reviewed by an independent landscape architect, who
provided a detailed analysis and report of their findings. As only a short period of time has
passed since the original application was determined and no obvious changes have taken
place in the local context of the site, officers have used the original landscape architects
comments in the consideration of this new application.

The landscape architects original response concluded that ‘The proposal would lead to
both adverse landscape and visual change in the local area and would be contrary to
policy SD7 of the JCS’. As before, officers understood that the identified harm specifically
related to the scale and massing of the building and in particular the impact of the two
storey elements on the public right of way. Previous discussions with the landscape
architect concluded that a reduction in scale and the submission of a landscaping plan
could reduce the level of harm/impact.

As mentioned in point 6.15 above, the proposal is now for a single storey flat roof dwelling
which is significantly smaller than the dwelling previously considered. In addition, the



6.19

6.20

6.21

6.22

6.23

6.24

6.25

6.26

6.27

Page 85

dwelling has been moved further west and would be further away from the public right of
way. Officers consider that the proposed new dwelling in terms of its reduced size, scale
and overall massing, as well as its new position in the plot significantly reduces its built
form and therefore reduces harm to the character of the area, surrounding AONB and its
impact on the adjacent public right of way.

The development would replace two existing derelict and deteriorating structures which
currently have a negative impact on the landscape character, the removal of these is
therefore considered as being an enhancement to the site and to the landscape character.

A landscape and visual impact assessment, produced by MHP, chartered landscape
architects has been submitted as part of this revised application and sets out how this
revised proposal has been developed in order to address the comments and refusal
reason given by planning committee. The summary and conclusion of this document
provides the following analysis:

‘The development proposals assessed are limited in scale, contained to a single
storey in height and replace existing built form. The development proposals
incorporate inherent mitigation measures to soften the potential effects of
replacement built form on the edge of settlement location such as limiting the height
of the dwelling to a single storey, keeping an appropriate distance between the
dwelling and the footpath and incorporating a green roof. The development would
be in keeping with the established localised clustered settlement pattern and
introduce landscape features which reflect the desirable characteristics of the area.
The development will remove site elements in poor condition that presently detract
from the valued local landscape. Whilst the development would result in some loss
of openness, this would be limited and contained within the context of existing built
form present on site the site and enclosure by landform and surrounding vegetation
and built form.’

Officers consider that the design, scale and form of this proposal has been developed
having taken on board the landscape architects previous response, officer comments and
discussions/refusal reason given at planning committee and has been developed in a way
so as to limit the impact on the AONB and landscape character. This revised scheme is
not considered by officers to result in unacceptable harm to the AONB or Landscape
character.

Design and layout

The proposed new dwelling sits centrally within the plot and is considered to be of an
appropriate footprint and scale for the size of the site, this would also reflect the general
character and pattern of development in the locality.

The proposal includes the introduction of a ‘green roof’, which is considered to be
acceptable in principle, however as suggested by the landscape architect details of the
type of green roof should be submitted for consideration prior to its installation.

The overall design of the proposed new dwelling is clearly contemporary; officers feel that
careful consideration has been given to the form, design and use of materials and the
proposal results in a building that is of an acceptable design for this location. A condition
requiring material samples/details to be submitted has been suggested.

Impact on neighbouring amenity

As mentioned above, this application seeks consent for a wholly single storey dwelling,
due to the size of the plot, the position of the dwelling within the plot and its relationship



6.28

6.29

6.30

6.31

6.32

6.33

6.34

6.35

6.36

6.37

6.38

6.39

6.40

6.41

6.42

Page 86

with neighbouring land users, the proposal is not considered to result in any unacceptable
impact on neighbouring amenity in terms of a loss of light or loss of privacy.

The reduction of the proposed dwelling to a single storey from that of a two storey
dwelling would also reduce the presence of a new dwelling in this site and would not result
in any overbearing impact on any neighbouring land users.

As before, a condition has been suggested that prohibits the installation of external
lighting as this could be considered to have a greater impact on the area during evening
hours.

Due consideration has been given to the letters of objection received, although concerns
are raised they do not specifically relate to impact on neighbouring amenity.

It is not considered in this instance that the proposal will result in any unacceptable loss of
light, loss of privacy or overbearing impact on any neighbouring residential land user and
is therefore considered to be compliant with local plan policy CP4 and JCS policy SD14.

Access and highway issues

Gloucestershire Highways have reviewed the revised submission; no objection has been
raised however a condition relating to a construction management plan has been added.
The proposed dwelling is not considered to result in any highway safety implications and
is considered to be acceptable on access, parking and highway safety grounds.

Impact on protected species

As with the previous application, records identify that important species have been sighted
near the application site in the past and in particular bats recorded in 2017, the sighting
was recorded as 215 metres from the site. In addition badgers have been recorded in
2017, 245m from the site. In light of this, an Ecological assessment was previously
requested and provided.

The previous ecological assessment concluded that there was an ‘occasional pipistrelle
night roost used by a small number of individual bats located in the existing stable
building.” The impact to local populations within the report is considered to be ‘negligible’.
Officers accept that there is an occasional night roost in one of the buildings but are
confident that suitable mitigation measures can be provided to ensure that any bats are
appropriately protected. A condition requiring suitable mitigation measure details to be
submitted prior to any works starting has therefore been suggested.

It is important to note that all bat species, their breeding sites and resting places are
protected by law as they are European Protected Species.

With regard to badgers, the GCER report acknowledges the presence of Badgers in the
local area, however there is no information or evidence to suggest that there are any setts
on the application site.

Trees

The council’s tree officer has reviewed the application and raises no objection to the
proposed development. However, the officer has requested that a tree protection plan is
submitted, this has been suggested as a condition.

Other considerations

Officers acknowledge the comments received by the Architects Panel, however these
have been received relatively late in the process and after the main considerations of the



Page 87

application have taken place. Having said that, officers understand the comments and
concerns that have been made, however as already mentioned, officers consider the
proposed design, form and layout of the proposed development to be acceptable and do
not consider that further revisions would be necessary in order to achieve support of the
scheme.

7. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

7.1

7.2

7.3

Officers fully appreciate the sensitive location of this site and fully acknowledge the
concerns that have been raised by local residents and comments provided in the various
consultation responses.

Having fully considered the revised plans, the councils previous landscape architects
comments and the content within the applicants landscape impact assessment, it is clear
that this revised application has been developed in order to address the previous refusal
reason and it is the view of officers that the proposed dwelling is of an acceptable scale
form and design for this plot and has been designed so as to have minimal impact on the
surrounding AONB and landscape character.

On balance, given that officers consider there to be no unacceptable harm to the AONB
and the design, scale and form of the new dwelling to be appropriate, as well as being
acceptable in terms of impact on neighbouring amenity, impact on trees and appropriate
landscaping, any identified harm is not considered to significantly or demonstrably
outweigh the benefits, when assed against the relevant policies/framework, therefore
officer recommendation is to permit the application, subject to the conditions set out
below;

8. CONDITIONS / INFORMATIVES

1

The planning permission hereby granted shall be begun not later than the expiration of
three years from the date of this decision.

Reason: To accord with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act
2004.

The planning permission hereby granted shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved plans listed in Schedule 1 of this decision notice.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

Prior to the commencement of development (including demolition and site clearance), a
Tree Protection Plan (TPP) to BS5837:2012 (or any standard that reproduces or
replaces this standard) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The TPP shall include the methods of tree and /or hedge protection,
the position and specifications for the erection of tree protective fencing, and a
programme for its implementation. The works shall not be carried out unless in
accordance with the approved details, and the protective measures specified within the
TPP shall remain in place until the completion of the construction process.

Reason: To safeguard the existing tree(s) in the interests of visual amenity, having
regard to saved policies GE5 and GE6 of the Cheltenham Borough Local Plan (2006).



Page 88

Approval is required upfront to ensure that important trees are not permanently
damaged or lost.

All landscaping works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. The
works shall be carried out prior to first occupation of any part of the development unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Any trees or plants indicated on the approved scheme which, within a period of five
years from the date of planting, die, are removed or become seriously damaged,
diseased or dying shall be replaced during the next planting season with other trees or
plants of a location, species and size which shall be first agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of the character and appearance of the area, having regard to
saved policies CP7, GE5 and GE6 of the Cheltenham Borough Local Plan (2006), and
adopted policies SD4 and INF3 of the Joint Core Strategy (2017).

Notwithstanding The Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 and The
Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015
(or any order revoking and/or re-enacting those orders with or without modification), the
development shall be a self-build dwelling as defined under the Self-build and Custom
Housebuilding Act 2015 (as amended by the Housing and Planning Act 2016) and shall
not be used for any other purpose without express planning permission.

Reason: To ensure there are enough serviced plots of land to meet the demand for
self-build and custom housebuilding in the borough, having regard to the self-build
register and the provisions of the Joint Core Strategy (2017).

Prior to installation, details of the green roof shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority. The details shall include the type and final
established character of the proposed green roof.

Reason: In the interests of the character and appearance of the area, having regard to
saved policies CP7, GE5 and GEG6 of the Cheltenham Borough Local Plan (2006), and
adopted policies SD4 and INF3 of the Joint Core Strategy (2017).

Notwithstanding the provisions of The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and/or re-enacting that
order with or without modification), no extensions, garages, sheds, outbuildings, walls,
fences or other built structures of any kind (other than those forming part of the
development hereby permitted) shall be erected without express planning permission.

Reason: Any further extension or alteration requires further consideration to safeguard
the amenities of the area, having regard to saved policies CP4 and CP7 of the
Cheltenham Borough Local Plan (2006) and adopted policies SD4, SD7 and SD14 of
the Joint Core Strategy (2017).

No external facing or roofing materials shall be applied unless in accordance with:

a) a written specification of the materials; and/or
b) physical sample(s )of the materials.

The details of which shall have first been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.



10

11

12

Page 89

Reason: In the interests of the character and appearance of the area, having regard to
saved policy CP7 of the Cheltenham Borough Local Plan (2006) and adopted policy
SD4 of the Joint Core Strategy (2017).

No development shall take place, including any demolition works, until a construction
management plan or construction method statement has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved plan/statement shall
be adhered to throughout the demolition/construction period. The plan/statement shall
provide for:

24 hour emergency contact number;

— Hours of operation;

Parking of vehicle of site operatives and visitors (including measures taken to
ensure satisfactory access and movement for existing occupiers of neighbouring
properties during construction);

Routes for construction traffic;

— Locations for loading/unloading and storage of plant, waste and construction
materials;

Method of preventing mud being carried onto the highway;

Measures to protect vulnerable road users (cyclists and pedestrians)

Any necessary temporary traffic management measures;

— Arrangements for turning vehicles;

— Arrangements to receive abnormal loads or unusually large vehicles;

— Methods of communicating the Construction Management Plan to staff, visitors and

neighbouring residents and businesses.

Reason: In the interests of safe operation of the adopted highway in the lead into
development both during the demolition and construction phase of the development.

The vehicular accesses shall be constructed in accordance with the submitted plan
drawing no. PLOO5 with any gates hung so as to open into the application site and shall
be maintained thereafter.

Reason: - To reduce potential highway safety impact by ensuring that a safe and
suitable access is laid out and constructed that minimises the conflict between
pedestrians, cyclists and vehicles in accordance with paragraph 108 and 110 of the
National Planning Policy Framework.

Prior to the commencement of development, a surface water drainage scheme, which
shall incorporate Sustainable Urban Drainage System (SUDS) principles, shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall
include a programme for implementation of the works; and proposals for maintenance
and management. The development shall not be carried out unless in accordance with
the approved surface water drainage scheme.

Reason: To ensure sustainable drainage of the development, having regard to adopted
policy INF2 of the Joint Core Strategy (2017). Approval is required upfront because the
design of the drainage is an integral part of the development and its acceptability.

No external lighting shall be installed without prior written consent from the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of the character and appearance of the area, having regard to
saved policies CP7, GE5 and GE6 of the Cheltenham Borough Local Plan (2006), and
adopted policies SD4 and INF3 of the Joint Core Strategy (2017).



13

Page 90

Notwithstanding the Ecological Assessment received on 6th September 2019, prior to
the commencement of any works including site clearance/demolition, a detailed scheme
for mitigation measures in relation to bats shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority.

The approved mitigation measures shall be adhered to and implemented throughout the
construction period and thereafter shall be maintained in accordance with the approved
details.

Reason: To ensure that adequate mitigation measures are provided in order to
safeguard protected species in accordance with adopted JCS policy SD9 and
paragraph 175 of the NPPF, this information is required upfront because without proper
mitigation the construction works could have an unacceptable impact on protected
species at the beginning of construction.



Page 91

APPLICATION NO: 20/00154/FUL OFFICER: Mr Ben Hawkes
DATE REGISTERED: 29th January 2020 DATE OF EXPIRY : 25th March 2020
WARD: Battledown PARISH: CHARLK

APPLICANT: | Newbay Consulting Ltd

LOCATION: | Oakfield House Stables, Oakfield House, Greenway Lane

PROPOSAL: | Erection of a single self-build dwelling following the demolition of existing stables
(revised scheme)

REPRESENTATIONS

Number of contributors 7
Number of objections 7
Number of representations 0
Number of supporting 0
Haytor
65 Harp Hill

Charlton Kings Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 6PR

Comments: 19th February 2020
We would like to object to the application 20/00154/FUL for Oakfield House Stables, Oakfield
House, Greenway Lane, Charlton Kings, Cheltenham, Gloucestershire.

Oakfield House Stables sits in the Cotswolds AONB, which is protected land around Cheltenham.
It is part of the appeal of Cheltenham and this area and has been designated as AONB for this
reason.

We feel very strongly about building on AONB land. Cheltenham has a plan for new housing and
this does not form part of it. Oakfield House is typical of the large properties around this area that
sit in a substantial plot. We feel strongly that the properties in this area should not be given
permission to reduce their green space in order to build more houses (sadly this has already
happened at Cromwell Court, also on Greenway Lane and also part of the AONB).

Greenway Lane is a country lane with no transport links, no footpaths and no cycle lanes,
meaning travel by car will be essential, thus increasing traffic and impacting the environment. The
area is used by walkers, runners, cyclists and horse riders because of its beauty and if houses
are allowed to be built on this land, increased traffic, pollution and the destruction of wildlife will
spoil it.

It is essential that the report by Ryder Landscape Consultants re the original application should
again be referred to in the consideration of this application, as the majority of its observations still
apply to the new application. We will not highlight the individual elements of that report that are
still appropriate but encourage the Planning Department to consider its observations in reaching
its decision. It is however worth repeating part of the report's summary here:

"The visual benefit of replacing dilapidated stables with a large residential dwelling has not been
proven. It would also lead to an adverse landscape effect by changing the rural character of the
area to one that is more residential in nature. This could lead to a further tilt in landscape
character pushing the perceived settlement edge of Cheltenham clearly into the Cotswolds
AONB.



Page 92

| recognise that this application is solely for the stables site bit it could bring further development
pressures for conversion, or demolition and development of the adjacent Greenacre Farm barns.
This would increase landscape character change in the area.”

The reason provided for the refusal of the original application was ultimately ascribed to "the
scale, mass and form of the proposed new dwelling". By simply reducing the scale, mass and
form of the proposed dwelling it does not follow that this is sufficient to warrant the granting of
permission, and the new application still does not show that the development would conserve or
enhance the Cotswold AONB. As such the new application is also contrary to the NPPF (para
172), Joint Core Strategy policy SD7, the Cotswold AONB Management Plan 2018-23 and the
relevant saved policies of the Local Plan.

The applicants' LVIA states (para. 6.21): "Prejudice to the area's 'openness’ is already extant by
the existing stable block. Its replacement with a properly considered, low-key, landscaped
development can therefore only be an improvement." The existing stable block however is a
fraction of the size of the proposed development so we fail to see how this conclusion can be
reached.

The applicants' LVIA states (para. 7.1): "the submitted LVIA has confirmed an absence of
prejudice to the openness of the AONB", yet this is disingenuous as it is in direct contradiction to
some earlier statements within the same LVIA, namely para. 6.11 ("the proposed development
may result in the loss of some openness") and references to the proposal's effect on openness
(6.13) and the proposal's "harm caused to openness" (6.24).

For the reasons provided above we request that the Planning Department refuse permission for
this latest application for development on the site.

Greenway Farm
Greenway Lane
Charlton Kings
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 6PL

Comments: 20th February 2020
Letter attached.

Baedalas Tun
Ashley Road
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 6PJ

Comments: 24th February 2020
'‘Great weight should be given to conserving and enhancing landscape and scenic beauty in
Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty which has the highest status of protection in these issues.'

| have grown up and lived in this part of Charlton Kings for more than fifty years and am deeply
connected to the beautiful countryside here where an abundance of wildlife co-exists, including
deer, muntjac, foxes, squirrels, bats and very many species of birds; buzzards, woodpeckers,
chaffinches, owls to name but a few.

| strongly object to this application and concur with all of the well-documented objections already
raised. | am particularly grateful to the Cotswold Conservation Board and the Campaign to



Page 93

Protect Rural England for their support which underlines that there are proper grounds for our
objections.

For the previous application on this site - 19/01252/FUL which was refused - the planners used
the services of an experienced specialist Landscape Consultant, Stuart Ryder, to report on the
LVIA. It remains an excellent assessment; impartial, thorough, articulate, detailed and passionate
and | agree with it wholeheartedly. His concerns were not just about the size of the proposed
building so that this report is still relevant for this revised application - where | quote from it my
script will be in inverted commas.

o The site is outside of the PUA and entirely within the AONB and therefore not part of the
Town Plan.

o Cheltenham has precious little AONB on our fringes - that which we do have we should
value and protect.

o The proposed building would not be appropriate in this semi-rural location; to make it a
domestic residential one would alter the entire character of the locality and its gentle
tranquility. It's key characteristics are those combinations of elements which are particularly
important to the current character of the landscape and help to give an area it's particularly
distinctive sense of place.

o The footprint is too large, it is too modern, not in keeping.

o The proposals are more appropriate for a mixed residential area rather than for the semi-
rural nature of the site.

o "The flat roof prevents the height of a pitched roof adding further impact but of itself does
not necessarily prevent visual harm from occurring. It has been described as
‘contemporary' but 'contrasting' could also be a description given to it.'

o 'There is a sense of stretch and spread to the proposals. This would be heightened by the
use of adjoining external spaces as courtyard and garden. This elongated form is not
traditional to the area and contrasts with the nearby property form.'

o "It is arguable that the building design would not appear as submissive but rather as a large
residential property and a considerable increase in scale of built form when compared to
the previous stable buildings.'

o The proposal considers the removal of the farm buildings and replacement with the
proposed development is a betterment. 'This may be the case in terms of architectural built
form and usage but it does not automatically lead to a landscape or visual betterment.'

o 'If the stable buildings were changed to a residential property with a domestic character the
perception of the route will change from a farm access to a residential drive and in turn
change the character of the area to residential. Put simply, the stables appear appropriate,
if in a poor state of repair, for this collection of agricultural buildings. The proposed
development would change the scene to a domestic residential area.’

o "Turning back to the point that the existing stables' dilapidated landscape will be 'enhanced'
by the new residential property misses the argument whether the change in built form leads
to other more adverse landscape character changes to the area and this part of the AONB.'

o Users of the very well-used public footpath would be VERY affected. 'Landscape screening
is proposed but at the short range distance the sense of rural to residential character
change will be clearly perceived. The proposed building would be the primary feature of this
part of the path.'

o 'Whether the landscape has low or high visual prominence is immaterial to its designation
as a part of the Cotswolds' AONB . . . The site is not part of the escarpment that can be
seen as the backdrop to wider Cheltenham. This fact is true but the statement does not



Page 94

address the contribution that it makes to the landscape setting of this part of Cheltenham
and the doorstep recreation value of the landscape and footpaths that run through it.'

o 'When consideration of architectural and matching existing forms of development is taken
into account, the proposal will not complement the existing settlement pattern.'

o 'The argument that the site acts as a detractor is attempting to set up the beneficial visual
effects appraisal for the development. However, farms and their outbuildings are not
normally pristine and that is part of the character of a working rural landscape.’

o Sites that have been allowed to fall into a state of disrepair either by current or previous
owners should not be rewarded with planning decisions based on the assumption that the
development of a large new modern residential building will automatically lead to landscape
and visual betterment on land which is part of the AONB. Arguably, reconstruction into
‘actual' stables or demolition and restoring the yard to grass would more readily ‘conserve’
and 'enhance' the AONB landscape and would delight both neighbours and footpath-users
alike.

o '‘Adverse effects come about not only from a loss of openness but also from a change in
landscape character.

TO SUMMARISE :

o 'The proposals would lead to both adverse landscape and visual change in the local area.
This is in conflict with JCS Policy SD7 as it neither 'conserves' or 'enhances' the natural
beauty of this nationally designated area and it is also at odds with the objectives of the
Cotswold AONB Management Plan (2018 - 2023).

o It would create a precedent for further attempts to develop in this lovely location.

o "The visual benefit of replacing dilapidated stables with a larger residential dwelling has not
been proven. It would lead to an adverse effect by changing the rural character of the area
to one that is residential in nature. This could lead to a further tilt in landscape character
pushing the perceived settlement edge of Cheltenham into the AONB.'

The proposed development site is ENTIRELY visible from ALL of the downstairs daytime living
areas of my home as well as the upstairs - NOT partial upstairs views as suggested several times
in the LVIA. The downward slope actually accentuates it rather than hides it. This will neither
conserve or enhance the lovely view of the AONB as it is now and has been for so many years. It
will also contribute to light pollution which is discouraged in protected areas. This is at odds with
the Cotswold AONB Management Plan -

o Policy CE1 - Landscape

o This policy states that proposals that are likely to impact on the landscape of the AONB -
should have regard to, be compatible with and reinforce the character of the location - and
should have regard to the scenic quality of the location and its setting and ensure that
views in and out of the AONB are conserved and enhanced.

o Policy CE3 - Local Distinctiveness

o Ensure that the new-built development is visually integrated with the rural landscape setting
and does not interrupt the setting of existing views.

o Policy CE5 - Dark Skies

o Concerned with light pollution.

It would be a sad day for local residents if this application is granted. We are blessed to live so
close to the massively popular Cleeve Hill - Greenway Lane actually leads to it - and our country

lanes are loved by walkers, runners, cyclists, horse-riders, dog-walkers alike, all seeking the
peace and harmony of the countryside here. | fervently believe we have a huge responsibility to



Page 95

preserve this valuable legacy for future generations to enjoy and that although there is a pressing
need for new 'affordable' housing, it should not take priority over protecting our environment.

Hallam Oaks
Greenway Lane
Charlton Kings
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 6PN

Comments: 18th February 2020
Letter attached.

Comments: 24th February 2020
Letter attached.

Cherry Court
Ashley Road
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 6PJ

Comments: 31st January 2020

Whilst the amended proposal makes an attempt to reduce impact, the overriding principle and
constraints of development within AONB are still relevant. The application is not for a
replacement dwelling and as such increases the domesticity and urbanisation of what is essential
open semi rural land which has currently a sporadic scattering of human activity which is in
keeping with the listing of AONB.

The proposal does not enhance or conserve the land use.

The application is the latest in a series of residential applications in and around greenway lane
and the rear slopes of Battledown hill that have the cumulative affect of eroding the unique gentle
semi rural nature of the land In this unique part of Charlton Kings. The incremental urbanisation
of this marginal land should not be supported either in the interest of the AONB, general public
amenity or the conservation of a range of protected species who enjoy the marginalised nature of
the land off greenway Lane. The increased development of the area will remove that which
makes this a special part of Charlton Kings, something that is recognised both regionally and
nationally as an attraction by way of the mix of land use in the ward and of general benefit to the
town overall.

Furthermore, the footprint of the proposed development is excessive when compared to the
gentle imposition of the small agricultural buildings that occupy the site and compliment the
adjoining land use.

The land is currently not put to a residential use and is remote from the residential area of
Battledown hill and that on greenway lane. The semi rural nature should be maintained .



Page 96

The Chase
Greenway Lane
Charlton Kings
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 6PN

Comments: 20th February 2020

| wish to add my objection to the long list of other neighbours to this proposed development. The
last application (for which the council hadn't notified us about) was refused by a large majority, so
| fail to see how this revised plan can really be seriously considered.

Hopefully the council will do the right thing again and continue to protect the AONB.

14 Greenway Lane
Charlton Kings
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 6LB

Comments: 17th February 2020

Whilst this is an improvement on the previous application, the proposed development is still for a
large detached dwelling situated outside of the Principle Urban Area (PUA), wholly within the
AONB and adjacent to a public right of way.

The site is surrounded by fields and Cheltenham Borough Council's own Landscape Character
and Sensitivity Assessment (April 2015) classified this location (Greenway Wooded Pasture
Slopes) as having a Low capacity for development, with High landscape sensitivity, Medium-High
visual sensitivity and High landscape value.

Planning applications may have to be considered individually, without prejudice to future
applications, but it is undeniable that permission to build in this case would only make future
applications more likely in this sensitive vicinity.

Whilst this application in isolation might seem acceptable, it chips away at the edges of the AONB
and creates a context for further development. The aggregate effect of such incremental erosion
to the AONB would not be acceptable.

Our family are regular users of the Public Right of Way that passes immediately alongside this
site. Even with the modifications to the design this proposal would affect the character and
openness of the location.

In practical terms, | also question the suitability and sustainability of the local facilities to support
yet more development. With absence of pavements and public transport in the location this plan
would be guaranteed to result in another 4 vehicles regularly on the road. We already suffer from
significant congestion at peak times, with traffic queued right back past our property from the
Sixways junction, with a dangerous effect on air quality and the safety of our young children
crossing the road to/from the single-sided pavement at this end of Greenway Lane. Local doctors
and schools are already over-stretched. These things need addressing if development continues
to be permitted at the current rate in this area.



Delivered by Hand Page 97
Hallam Oaks

sreenway Lane
Charlton Kings
Cheltenham
GL52 6PN

B Hawkes Esq

Planning Officer

Cheltenham Borough Council
PO Box 12

Municipal Offices
Promenade

Cheltenham

GL50 1PP

17" February 2020
Dear Mr Hawkes

Re: Planning Application of a single self-build dwelling following the demolition of existing stables
(revised scheme) at Oakfield House Stables, Oakfield House, Greenway Lane, Ref No. 20/00154/FUL
(Previous Planning Application No. 19/01252/FUL)

| write to object to the above Planning Application:

My letter dated 31.07.2019 covers in detail, and history, this referred to AONB application and a copy of
same is enclosed under separate cover. However, it seems necessary to reiterate some of these points.

1. i fail to see what has changed in the revised scheme.

2, This Area of Qutstanding Natural Beauty was designated in 1966 and no property has been built on
it since then — except Cromwell Court that replaced a small bungalow (The Bungalow). Today,
regrettably, we have witnessed the desecration of that woodland area and the threat to wildlife.
The sanctity and preservation of the AONB was emphasized by the Government and the National
Trust in 2015,

3. This application refers to agricultural land - not garden land nor brownfield — in the AONB and
should be retained as such. If the sheds are so disagreeable to the applicants, may | suggest:

i) that they are replaced/repaired for good agricultural use.
ii) that they are removed, and wildflowers are planted that would truly ‘conserve and enhance’
this AONB — also retaining peace and tranquillity.

4. I query why there are now TWO sets of separate gates in respect of this Planning Application ~one
to service the Oakfield House land (as before) and the second for the proposed new dwelling — yet
on the same Oakfield House land that has, | believe, one Access Right only. The Deeds would be
required to ascertain this point.

5a) Although reference has been made to the off-road parking area attached to the proposed new
dwelling, it remains completely inadequate. All delivery vans, lorries, etc., would park outside
these gates ~ especially when shut.

5b) I will repeat: Thisis an Access Only narrow, single lane farm track leading off Greenway Lane and
coming to a dead-end by the walker’s style, the current gate, with the Public Footpath running
through. There is no turning area and any (all) parked vehicles would barricade off the
entrance/exit to Hallam Oaks {Battledown Manor) causing a complete blockage of vehicular flow.
Vehicles would have to reverse down to Greenway Lane and join the dangerous flow of traffic.




5c¢)

5d)

10.

11.

12.

13,

in over 50 years of living here this track E,auggbggerved two properties:@mm
Hallam Qaks and never has a parking/blocking issue occurred, each considering the other. During
the past year, cars and trucks have parked by the existing gate, thus preventing vehicular flow from
Hallam Oaks. Designing a property is one thing, making it safely functional in all aspects is another,
particularly with regard to any emergency vehicles. Surely it cannot be legal for any new dwelling
to be built that would only accelerate this matter?

I would point out that sewerage pipes run under the farm track in this dead-end area. Should this
Planning Application have the misfortune to be granted, | would take no responsibility for any
damage incurred and | would seek, and expect, full compensation in all directions.

The original 2 storey (part) building has now become a single storey with varying roof heights that
would give a jagged vista to the naked eye, especially to the many walkers. The rectangular type
boxes appear to have just been re-arranged to present a different facade. The green roofs are still
horribly apparent, will deteriorate quickly and will conflict with the colours and contours of nature.
The variety of possible materials that ‘could’ be used does nothing to create harmony in this rural
location and possibly, one day, in the not too distant future, the 2" storey would be added. The
mantra, “each application is considered on its own merits”, would not carry much weight.

No consideration of the invaluable wildlife, that | have already catalogued before, is being
considered.

Yet again | will state: these 2 small sheds were never built as stables and never served as such ~ all
forms of farm animals, yes — pigs, hens, etc. In more modern times, and only for a very short
period, was the odd horse bunched inside - sheltering from the rain and the poison of the ragwort.

The planned footage, and height, of this proposed Planning Application still greatly exceeds the
footage of those 2 small sheds. The building would be totally out of keeping with the character of
the area and would continue to be an eyesore to the many walkers on the public footpath.

The comment in the LVIA report, in respect of Oakfield Rise, only goes to show how devastating
some contemporary architecture can be in the traditional country setting. In my view, itis a
travesty, but Oakfield Rise is largely governed by the Battledown Estate and thus the older, fine
property was allowed to be demolished and to be replaced with the modern.

In Documents, Views 1/2: these are totally artificial photomontages with the proposed sharp-
angled buildings appearing to be surrounded by pristine lawns, hedges and relatively established
and mature trees. It would take many years for that to be enacted. The reality would be a scar,

Looking from all compass points, but in particular from the North to the South West across the
AONB, the view would be completely marred, and | disagree strongly with the comment, “The
Magnitude of effect is assessed to be NEGLIGIBLE”. | think the very balanced Ryder Landscape
Consultants’ LVIA Report should be revisited again for, as | stated at the beginning, “what has
changed in this revised scheme?”

The “reduction” only reduces the level of harm/impact on the area-does not remove it ~ it would
remain a carbuncle on the AONB landscape. There is absolutely no requirement for this proposed
dwelling, it does not constitute a part in the Borough's 5 year quota requirement and it doesn’t off-
load the affordable housing issue.

This Planning Application was Refused at its first hearing on 17.10.2019. | sincerely hope that wisdom will
prevail again at the CBC Planning Committee Meeting on 19t March 2020 in respect of the AONB and not

commercialisation. o

Yours sincerely




‘ @ ” “HTECLQ\C 20, gﬂ V) Page 99 J—"\”\(c\\\ chv\\\C)o,L\"\"‘é ,
ouLln.

V2t O GL&,\

C?owu(\ \,‘g O%—f ca
/ n‘ — Q.t/) C:) |

Telrecau Bovouols <2l valle, SE
\ : =
g;.)O, @UX \\g’ A st i CM\\/LQ/\-’\&/\OL(;L«\ -

\ lu\/\\c:w %%J C)”%%ﬂul; . PLANNING 6\)\"‘ SESIRRN !
omanede, Clelbegban. [0 soia
EL <o \Pp O L
Qﬂﬁg wbuwatt d ou T T A PR TN
yo_cw(ﬂﬁ““‘{a‘lm\c oo I"“]@: C‘;’f ‘-"*(Q-Vj Jelo me' )
(. QOPOSA.\@ g\{ec\/\@;‘ QQ— o &‘)’L\:\c\\& Q,ﬂ.\&)“%w\\o\ A\u;s.a\\w\'al -{QO oo
o do e S\ o - QQ ex @\ w\ sheddies ot Qe old Mo !
SValler, Colef, ) e, Gy eewon Lows, Ranlion. hu‘;\q |

Lol

,/ ¢ , \ “
L. A aw, SN \L@_cm%\» g\ \/lQp\_\ \.Q“k\fg/q (_?ouco\/u\uc?\\"\/md c,m\o«\u: I\Dro?o&mﬁ\

()\owuc\pf@\ & VQ)\\C'_.:\\/L 6] Jm ,‘(\/w L\/ oV 00.49\ \JS\\(\A OL»\\/ ? [ (L,x?_(.u\\ k,@\ \f\,g "OL\\)\.Q_C&QV(?, .

\‘), . g)\(/‘n\’( A \/\/Lla kalo CL( , (.C)(.l(\"‘ 4 \\'J Leo e \,'/C) k’).!‘L e Ce8C ey L"\ \/CJ) (}\ QO D !

\

"/\/\T\‘,\’ NP Q Ve OQ, Qu\[&’\’cg L,\@\L(:Lf)\ “Q\"LM)O\\ \Sgp_(z&..u\ \"""\/‘ -
3. r’m'u’ %MT—\ \\,‘ \/\Cu \Aa(\ \’Luz ’ J’u k/\ éLL«Lo\' @ v \’0 \\ ~Qr:—’\»“— \’lo \ \ 0:0. ey \ ““\‘\’ o \\a Wi
Q&t e ‘:.QQ J g \ \/re_r,&,k/l {,\:-\ k\/L‘\j gga_u\()\,k\ Q‘/Q_‘:\ QQ, Opx\’g\f (.‘LL-L(/\\L/LQ\ 5\04\’{,,& Jm‘

(2»126\-“\/»\ co uu,l(w/v —zg':u‘g\& - \k\m VRN ()u/'(\r/p\,\q‘r;rz\ ‘t\/‘ WA e Q‘L(@/ e thc\\/\ - Q\/\ oo\,

+ A .. .’) ’
\S\C\\fao\ ’\\)“\\a\c\c PRV \(\A}L- (D'w\”\/\’f—.‘w’\’ Loave ‘“UL QJQC\(MM) Qoust g”“’"ﬁ@ (\*Q Ly

Wa Lose woled K \/;\D_Q&\v\ 5 @\m»t) o wek\(‘,um\ e tden Quco ¢>f>L&<:\uLQ;
an \f(w'@\“t\ e&, AN e @od g\\/\t/\,doc/ R\o av\"'l\.‘-or\c\'c:\\ »Q\Q\A/\\Q,x..\\/ CQ"’?V
S\}\W&M\'Vg\ oo o\ it Coan) et 0ven boae ol vodueed Yo teo |
o Cuhvsninme o and "\'70\\/\(){/\,\:\.\ \\'C\ - T wdend ,\)(&’1\64@ ~/a§/~e/\ V2 Ve

\i

"eonltlana ga\ﬁw&‘
A Tow \cmmu'u\ Q(} ((\\u\”. 0"\/\ J&Q&VQ \/’o l~’Q/>< \’:-e\/\ u.c.) %.\f"m\o\ Q,ch_- \f\/LL’,Q \& e
c O»x(o\i\":a’ wWitthowiov.  Bade vl e \al \& (Dg,(\cmof Wee Maw
-:-QW/ W v, SIEVERY al\ e \eied \% Ot Ka\“\r\w\mb i
Waney dwko'e ck\w\m \Go ol e Belabowon F\dz Jdown % (o)
WA fa%\:wg AW @\m,\w;\ %e\c\( /o«\&\/\o\ e kamwu;\aw 9§~ (')f-ubw’Dﬂw\ Lo

\/\A\,\c\,\ QQ, \(\A.Q \<ﬁ:/\\,¢z \hmb%\aucc G\\,\A \(\/\L E@%\A\lm\ &'ee\'\/ﬂ;\ &&w‘\'&a\\a\.u\ QC&\K’Q v
Tiwe Ddax «9&(/\&\\\1\5\lC@\‘/“c-b(\\/L\Jc(\ (\?(, (Y¥A \a\,m\ — 0D Qi e,




Ovey h&u —€ “Ouut‘wﬂ\ ot - \/kcw QL CLQ-(’N\”L\,«.D b\\ @{))

&Qad WA (SQM.L\A\:(\,(’ :Q,O bgh\c_\,\. \/L,L \/D—ﬂvd-\Page 100/\ N "\M\_/ O\f-s?(\x?_c\ ti).,.
Q\‘OGL"— S’V/’(Zaﬂ/ <V ¥=m)1d ?\MM\ v?-& (VR VM/\ poso e Vo et R \’\,\m\/

AL \/\CLQL \<\A,t \A,\LQ N WLV Q,,(; OCu\Z\Q M\o\ “JV\"T:&LJL A\/a\o\u , ""CL’;L«\ SAN RIS
(A a\\ &a\ ‘o:u \/ &l/ awa Qv Qwu\ Q @u\/(\"rw\& ua\ ﬂa\\ u\/m Eo_(\/bu ""\,\ \\/L;é,
'e/\/ ‘\f\s«m\,\ ) ”/\y\ﬁ Gnes ‘yv \A.ou\,( WX L \/\A, \/\ Qv\( o_\mg\tﬁg (i?\c /S\/\u P (

\O\WLLQ LAV ouc @(W\L b s o \La_g;\ PANVNIGN - ffJL\/v\vi\‘oﬂ/\ VIR (X
e Lo @bucde all DuzcpmonHoy esemped (@ favumeds feue aree bared,
\2 \A,LD\/\ a\/w\ . > ou Y& awn eve wn Vo el w\lvlﬁ.\{a_A) Ouc
OXC\/\ \'bv\,\ ~0\M QoLu\v\a\/ \g\'\ﬂ \(\A}- \Q.UUL‘\,L\\,\ Qo C‘\Aoc-\u\ Vo awe oo

\ \/\ \ Wi,

\CLVO\\L, (_'O\A)S \/\Qo.r—\ VOC\\ \/\ukﬁ\ Lt \(\Ad OL(ﬁL\ \’\w. \op(»w\.re Q\Au\‘oub/

v (l(\(('»\/\-LVKQ\ \/JL\@/\)\ £ () A L’(\/\z Jo VvOel WO \/Ulﬂ——l-\ \ < c;\ J m&) CN\/\\ AAVel L \ \ Lo e
.,/“ 4 ”

\/L Q(*u\\/\ A\ckv $§ \ e fsl S \\(:(/_,‘_o\ L\L\ e —SQJ\ \/\f’c\\ \/\ \«LLQ\’n\ \\ \ \/\a\ (’ e ()\\\

VPN PO~/\/ (L«vt ( o~ \(\, & -G 2 \lD s \X\/\\ (’\/\ L& \'\AQ v \1—) k\/\\:y( o\ ot =

\\,\_,;; o \/L(p\l\/-n.r,\ ] ()\\L«)Q e v Lo ven \,u\(bwtr\nc:\ ¥/o W owute \/LOV&(’\

(,7\\,(,\ CX\C\ v o\ A\ o Lo \A/LL\" ( wracue \ \/\ﬂ-f‘f‘»‘ \ \-(’ v C _
- «%? QK&\,\ “ V\A\.'\ \/\uw\o\»« \ﬂo O \’\,u». WO, Oe Z.Qa e\(\ Al e
\J‘\.‘f\ Q\FL\(‘\ VD ae \/\.\\/~ r—l\ Q \A\(‘ _‘%.F)\/ zJ\\/‘m5 \'\“’\ \/\O AL e ,?—\ 0\ \ \\M &l oot

e~ 0\/,ch\ WV ‘\A\LC ol \(0\(*\\53'0 (\ /\,W\ \(\»\.rL Q\/\uu (e de Kouee- tL,)\/U)\\r-‘

"\/\fa/,\‘v \/\c\a\/; V\QQQ‘/ col\ady b9 (/‘\CL\(\/ULV/ Lo fwe J{“*Q\‘C

AU \/\.\/\Q\\ L. \,\,C [N
%\~2 ("—\fﬁ—r\ V\‘/\Q\’Q,ﬁ&.p\ \(/O o S Ra \A/\\w\n_.. QA k\ﬁ.ﬁ— ?! L\)/ u\ a. (\\ Vi O 0. \/t,\ \e/ < \_,\\ Q»q " \./W

-
Iy

‘a/f(-\f/\f?\/\—‘; v \»-9

evancas — o\fr\/\@'\&\u] \0(‘_\LLV\. o . T

o\ (\/\g\.??&\,uﬁ.c\ :%sj a Qo \S)ov\O(\ K J»V\’I\Z

\/u\;o_o\ ol Pl oo Cuk_oxﬁ \Q'\IL\C\ \0(04 Nz Zecwne Pun @ oee.
DL o b b (ade @Q SCHL - Ao oredind o

\J\I\Q\A\S\/JQ\.H Jav \mo\_a 2\ ST Quad C/\Aauow QM\N.O m(\t> out

e \avd v \Q\iom\ ’“al\aw\ Qc\\u m()V\«\A\\Q, \ou/ovey Ju,Loup\\/ “«Qwo\faf/ 2

[ORWN kg\/t\x.\/\ \O.c\otL,\ \’/ \ou..g\c\ [y \f\)u\) \j\w ‘c)\,m/\.a\c\\va ) \\/\\.& g\'\\f@

hom&;:;\ WA ,QAJ\AA ,,Q\,\HAA < J&?.ﬁc\_t‘\\\v-\ ‘)\.(' < C~L\/Lc)\ Q\ALQ? fc=\\/"‘
_0,\50»\\ \A(x\\«q

m\" \(\-a(&ro S ~<\—-~\ a eV

CAW\ £ Qou\\/bu‘t\\\r\) \/\/\a,\,u/\ AKQ.LC\, V\L\/\O Cen VC o g o O-L
?\M; c\,\ g \\Aa‘\r P\ @ c Q \ mw\o\ WO é\\ﬂ_(/.\rj\a_c;\ ) }R’Q\f ea\n CLUL\ 'SML\'C/\
‘/Q-DLQNC < A\QG\ \/Ov \(\/\m V\J\O\/t$"Bﬁ\CT i\O‘~‘-’\\’ . \\f WO o \‘Q"Dg\\g\" WAL




VW ‘\u'?\\/\\’ GQ_ e C\,\\/Ja,m\/ C\,\—!/C_;\;:A/\Qfm_mca 07
' '\/\ITL’; wow Vaket wee ¥8 e afﬁg@ 1‘\()\%p\b\\uia\ & @<>\x eou auvd
Ve 2 ane Q\&@:})Q 2 @\/\u\ Lo wele Pos;g\lo\‘& 45 tedBue e Oue
QNSQ auwd Ve %\ﬁ\cg Ve e cnd ? S ‘/_JV\ vt e\ oo e Law
e LLQ Qvf lawilc\w;\ A e DD Q/ogz‘:t\l\ 7 /\\//‘L/o”sxx SWEDC

Coule o ba Wewd ~¥/BJ CLS’\\LQ.Qa&\p\JL) &LPS)/OP\/CC'\ 2 :eauw\l \PC‘Q\(“‘A"I

e, o @f)\ (,‘DTA(/\ (\;\ DL .

M\V\ijk\\(ul}m\ PP oser Soved (v [PV % CAVIEAR 8

e ' \
AV oo ou\v\ \}()_t/‘.@\ \/'..ﬂ,(,o_m\"\u—\ \C\w\" O L L,Do\(n. k"o Ve <o uvdd @&»

, , — .
\O\QO\\/\\« - Q;\,uu)_) O\ it o, RO 6 d&z\zv—‘ S\ b-ﬁ\\dl\b 2. \(\Nk Aud e \A\‘
u>\ ¢ A\ “ '

QU ALV C \ZJJJL\? G\ pocconr Un o ZeeVeo O/Q, Pein \OV\DTSL \%Q\&.c’ivul@m‘/(-
’a T Goveln Yzt Tval @\p\\ﬂ_ 7R ol wa wic Wc\.»wu\;ﬂ\ & 86\\&&1\/\ d\‘/l

Qenme , \& wae T be oo il ComdAde Wi Qe \g’ou«\’;w\\ﬁ“ Elvee.

w‘)y @V\\/Q\"ﬂ.w;\\;\a\ Nedcr @aﬂm\‘;\ , ’/\’C‘; e L ?o("{\,w\ Wowte |

%m\f\/\ oAg-w\qi’«\ow@,J, v \\(‘Q A\%\,\Lu& A\/w’&/ Dep \o;,pa\\" YSwavde Yl \oe

\ % oos ; ()\cu,q }km \{V\\L Loé\o\ue Seve Lubuctted wie \"\"&(\ o2 and

Lo VL %«04 ) vl oo Do e bublo aud savdewes Q,(,LL(&W.,\W\

Qn\" \(\)\x i’\“\O\.U\Q\/ 4 é/)t\\ K\A—L ?\J (v} \),x:\‘\ L WDode IOL'A,\»\ v’ V\(/\ ) \,L«kg)\\ VL,&;J.(/L\/ au/q

T, S <5“

. - f e ’
@\)‘\104{\'}, \::,\\.k L@ A\c\vz. éa\; oA ‘(\,\_L_ \/“Qa/.(g (W4 g\\y,o_.on\w’o et r“({/(“&\f WA ‘)oscx L,\ ey
V\,\,( &\A ﬂ(\\/ Q—Q a\\ \f\ML JQLL:\\(\\ \,\{:\C \,’b\ k\/\,«\ (,\‘/:ng. - (—;L()\o\.\.l./t. ) \/'v\ Wu’ﬂ\l'c,\/ktvw\’
ég‘ \g \-DS\r\ KY& wee " Q\\ QQ, k\/uu.u v g(a\ @,Lgc\&.m\/ \?J o.?.d\'i »LJ’ ‘\/\aw.a_ \’-’:3 cm\\/m T

\/0 "_1.\"\/\‘4. \/ b\,\i\\ o\ N \,lm\\o\\\fa Y m\/ \Io Y &O\V\\o\\/\ GQ\(’ ~ & 0 WAL L(‘.\A &Ho \\\Aﬂ(\/ ) o -‘»Qavi)

(M\ &wm\ TEN \mw £ .Q/y\\’fm\,\,c \Q Lt \»\,\e\-t,\ »3«\,@\/\ \f/wu’ .

L/\JLC\/\,“ \Om(‘,\(,/ \’\/\,\\J)_ \MD ck(?\'o. \
"\’\’?\\\ [V N Qm ’c} ' \\(QVLL\QAI O ol }()Lu\\\’ avdo \,\vto\ \(\/\m \o.\\/ia, \O\ &/Og \ﬂ.aw\u\ \Q\ G oc)

— \N;L,o \Lu)\ o\o\/m;\,\ _o_;\ ?.LL v (L g A O ) \/'\,«\ \f\/\& —J\n‘vé\” \,Lx ALl
‘QW o\ (gq\/ \(\.a_a Q K K\—\m WG - ”T’\/’w’j V. LA O .)P.@\, r\»\’q lo (,:,k\ (\ L e \(\»\m\/

- 3o 2. \ugo\ [2A% .‘Qé\. v\,\,\q\// \A \Q_(L¢\.n.c\ =N \A.O e \/\A \/&\L L'(‘,\/\ \f’O \\ 0:&
a\g\,\g\g:\AJ,_ \;\C.o :ngw\ &\’ga\&-, @u\\f) \,(\/\JL \OW\\D\ \/\o)-A\ \/5 G%&\A&J.ﬂ, \)”o/ o
Ve ol P ocg o\ e , o sZanee SNoured dBue ae i 3 oar

P{Q %«f\-\(’;\ﬂ\_‘ﬂ — \/LQ e \/\_u\ Vg‘\laé\‘(\/evk-& VN \(\/—1‘\ \Q O 6}\0\\/0\&\4

VD c\\\ b «,\:\9\ 0&» \(\A.Q La wre Kr\/\\\/\_:)\ . Q\Aé\(\/«xw é\f\ éuk\cg\ﬁ@bw voal Y\/\o,.\’

W\'(Q\/ v \./\\D—\




‘ . Lo . .
: \f\/u.a_ b\sz\A\\/ y \A@-—A \\/o \a-a. //\/'30\\ @\” \o e (‘_\C Lo \/\,\a\" '\\( wuor Lo
S NL“\ \/\/\\/\/‘\/\-(.\“Qﬂ\ ‘C;'/Tk‘; \(\.uL N \Q:Q Pag\e 102 \.«\(\,, Qud T\&\/LO"\/ - \/\/LL:Q
/ /c\(z\ \(\,u\ Aley gow\(\ﬂ QJ’Q\” VWOV

VOl AN g\\é\,,xﬂ_&\ a

9’\—- (i\j Dol O oh\,,,\ \__Q,\,\/ul (CL»Q aJL ﬂv’D\aa\ \Q\J <o “’\‘\’—Ei\\(it LV2N Q‘“\Cb \ O‘»Lr‘\ A
Lo v (%\’”0 it CC\C)\/U}\.\:L_Q\ - {\/ A Cany Lo/w\/ \j \LLLTt’S\/’D \A

AV \auw\/w.u -

Propals, Q,§ e
e Tla Rt S
G Modlaw, Ooke ko v Lo e bed o \ow biisy

Aocs el (Cymmacvz Camm) Ml wodlad
T kel Tl weur beale

R

el e Na ) e_::_a/ b \,\c»\
@\‘\,Q C. \/.\ﬁ—lz\’\\rw \./\/\\"o \<\,\.(L‘ J \S’h\_\‘,‘&g\ Qﬁ

\ Seenle el e
\/\«e\\/ o Joo, O ) Ovice, ‘:\«o.JtL Lo boeo o oy  D\WePlieydor LL( : \ Laee
\'%\‘"}J \Y\/\‘”—‘/"" vD- ()) y O?/C'(\_‘\ L0 bJ)— L\-'LS‘\ ll'-‘t\\@’\/'al)_f '\/\:-

AV e Qude, VoLoogug 2
\/\/LL (QL N Q’Q' Qu\ﬁ"s\ ﬁ.uc\\ v\% “{,\\)\,\«/ et \ Eé&u\"q — O \\ \’"’ g‘() "t?T)":I ey c/\ .
w( M ’(/}\j T\‘E_J‘a‘?m.l,y ) \/\‘/\ \(\,\,Q \\;3.\\/\ - QQ’ \(\/UL cil‘O‘D\/_o_,. '/1: _Qﬂ\:«.\ \CZ; \/Lbuz\ ‘Q‘Q\’Ctktcc

!
v Q\Q,\} JI_\\,\ \/LQ OO \(\,&L §) fo PO&.QC& @(.\-\«k :QCLI* " QCL\‘: "Qﬂ Q\(\ “‘kad (S g\/ﬂb\ ~L(‘” ALy '
G \,u,\ O\BOW‘\ C(Z\/L\(?\\ \A,.\Q'\,\\['(' QY Qbk\vkﬂ e \(\A L‘«(’ Q Ve, U&> @u & c«_u.b\ LL.LSL\

—T — ‘
g\m_ W Jl'»\ g%ﬂj&u\\”\/\, A)\'/ o \/U)L\/'(‘.X ) Cﬁ.\aL(S\ \/\\ oV “‘(‘l g‘\' VR 7 (.\ “A
\0\ V("\*Q— @ ""-'k\f) %\'/\;bt(_\f Uy 2 j (VW RV OuL\ \(\ Q nL\"JLC\ / &\/LL\/\ fe \\,L'r ot oLy R “\ QYO Ve
o

liu)\a\’m\s\" L \'7&& o\oue o '\N—’a\f\«k ve\ @ uvvo ﬁ(’r waeide . Ake

' ' , \
\/\sz\\/\\r PO\ (b!).\\ ﬁfxce,p_f\ e \Lﬂmz\\/u\/' D& e (fu\/dfzu\’ <\ @y&f a\,u,\ \(\u

lowu\(\\v\u\ \\\/lua (L‘? Q)L)“cx,u \’5 L;.Q ‘Q.L,:L/ ’QQ)JLD(kt/(.O G—Q, \(\/\,‘L ‘0/\4;' "L\,;p\ (()\,Lka ;\\uglg\

\\\/'UL @Q’ \(\/\J,"’\“C.“J;\) <\ &yg - \(\/\0\\/ ade ey \/‘a\,\\’\j QA QQ— &’U)-\\A\’ '“Q\I O Wt \(\/\\‘(
Vf O?";T\‘C'( ) /‘L\j\ K‘\\(\A , \f\,w\\/ R RVE R ) 8’ OMA \/\AL g“@\’/ 3 L7\ 0\" Qu\"

|
\(\/Lﬂ_ \%\UL\V\ Q*fﬂ—(‘\ BK, Qp\\/(q\’czww\ e “ot\ﬁlm\ @_{l_nbu\r\/‘ Jiowe dadcvocd

\(\/LQ \f\k@\lt 5912 \/\C&'S’, :\‘)—4 \1Q\c\,(‘ (R.\/ké\ Q \d‘) \(\/\_ﬂ* (J\Qﬂjcg\rg~ Ny \_Q Q\ﬁ_‘ COLLL 6\/@ U
‘ é{\&ol \QV O \(Lm Qfo\? DSJ«;C;\ AL ‘/\fxau\”
%_Kﬂ Q/\Qm C.\/\ , << \AVQ\"\

H
/\’\"\ \\ LScav ? Wl L\”‘ 'O £ v\o \,\,(\ .
‘) 0%—'\\/\ é\A \L\(;\' e o e Q/%()-E.«J \»o_'w(;e AU oy \40 U

ANV Proe Ofad \D/‘ro /\?,CZ\”C\ couw\d b &Q\* dQvu/ o (oc«.c\ﬁ oA k\w—/’k Lo %’\”M\/ﬂ
/ ’ ]
V\r v \ L ?\ ANV RN Q ¥ g\\ Caulve Qo L,L\e\ Loroe  vo

Cue v ﬂ.c\ﬁ\.ﬂ .
e\ ¢ ev@ine ce Vaa \ o o2, bo eV wa\ Q@x\@&\ﬂgkc\ Ao e , ,‘\”“Q\“Q >
Lo e \’\,\m\r&e\ )—e\\/ anDenen JYouwd W covvaer o Lka\ AP k\,\,m \o\/\_p\,e_

\ ’ ’ \
Q\O?"’ 0&' Voan '\Q" “Q\C\ d (\Q\\(\Aw Loauld aoue \ Q/\f ARV ?I 0@ OSJ’-C?\
Kam\,\\»\n\ pvo ﬂ)‘“’\““‘ be feon ‘@ DU A “\ s&, \'\_«.Q @L(Q\A\u? “ E@»@Q Leswie Ll




—

LS

| “‘&V U’«Q’ —l?—@\/ .\»«CW\C\Q’ gﬁw&t (’”\‘6 o c\-Q_::Pag\e 103\ %C\e_(}\n\\c‘\\ﬁ ’-\"kt’\’:\ (»ff f\(/c\‘n“u’&

/

s

et

-

£
-

iv\’\@k\/ WO Ov\\C\ Q\I'Q/L\o o\C \(\A‘\Q %)J Ofkpc\f . 0\‘4 Q\/m\ﬁu\ ) N\ e ——Qw\«'\&
é\«o \?qu» C’/‘b’\/\.(”\_c\ﬁ,\_g:\\o\ | o \,\A ) \\" L ace Wﬁg\d¢>\k'@c\ y ,\a j L oAl / \/g\w vl

e Ll 40 waad Wowes weve boldll, ar e Lavope
breddidoe comad 8 Wb ol i Nae o e gl i

et ety s b T = st o e @rees o QubQrcdiong
ﬂot\’»\\/m‘ Eo_c«.u\\/\,\ lbo-daen - TSN b o\ Wlow e Weve @K- \a,,(\(\”/”,g\.uu\v ‘
Q&\'\/\/&c\’(oja (}\\Q(L'IL\\A/\/QQ—\L‘Q‘ cu e BalWle €l avd e

[@RS u\e\ \/\m\)\,w m\\\,\ \Ovp_ o ()/(Q_A.'ac\ﬂﬁfc ¢y
LORVALY o ”\,\\' W w / WL ave Qi o (L Lo e f
SLo00-0 Y, o\\/ Ve Qluw e \\s\\» Y , bolle \

, .\ . )
Ao \\\U— “"\\\‘(\TL\ gm\\Q ‘OU\\’.’\/\J\Q\/(-\\ VL\\\./‘, \/\Aa‘ﬂ AJL e f(-mutw

é‘ L(\"W“-Q O ety (,,.,:Es\,\\/ ) w e \E\m\/ Le ?JQ 1 © te)
&/Q\I Oa\L:QU\ \:l\o\ '"-\_\*‘6 Ledo g\"(ﬁk\o\ @ o O ! ﬂ,\\ \\’\"‘6/\ l@(}‘ \\ " d\\’w m \wa)\

I

@Q/ Qan C\ V'\\;\,Q " Vi w o u\\_A \/\/‘O\" ‘OJL & 4__\ C_© A &ch .

[
-, '{ (?L\Z-o \/\O\_’\: KA Ci’-\\/..Q.m\/ CONWC e v ALl O R k\/ui 1‘0\\/ ase Voo ‘%A VAL, o

Q\(&\’ L-¢ ?.A v \xalvg e \JLCEL.O QA QOen \/\/\o\\" \(\/\. LL(’ [ Y L':b £2.ea v b(‘x—f/\\ «~\ )

\ ’
\(:’\\/:. O A G\u&o\ Lo Ve \(C) ‘()J& .s;——«_cQ\/OL L \,«-u&cs\ J \f CLO\ \,«.Q.\\/‘

. ' [
e wilce ~Qv\ \\ \/‘ ) % \fo we Wy Lo l\r\«t T\ O\(\A(' 0// “C\\/\A .00 \/k W2,
’?o—uhv GL\/V\()\)LV\\’ Q—Q» \AAL u\)’ \<0‘ (o2 \/\au ‘o;ﬂ—«"— “ \/\—kC‘—(x 2. V\Ap’\\" \(\/L(’_ ?I o \‘) 0"“-’—‘3\

gp\l 9) @LT\C1 S o \,L(c\ \;.,o_ \/\,‘L(\(&Q ey lo.,,\ \(\,UL \49_41 O Lo ©uen k\w”\"ﬂagc . \:\O-u‘

/&/ P vl O»w\/ ‘(\Am\/ .\Qf:)\/ L w m/(\(\/nc QQ/ \(\Aﬁ \/\414?&* e 'K\/‘Lw,()

Ve ’ -
l/\mo.a, Lo \Jz,crkx)&,k’/ ¢ O QLAA_\/. [CRV WY c,»‘L,u‘-.(/\ \/bmlie/\ / Q\\Q——o y ’\’\/ et

\/\rz_u_L\o (VYRR VNNV, Vo

PRVN Q\/\\)u\os Cra L a\\'q O~ Con b.o Qedav’a\v\ & avn cu:f\;zA AL
Wee Qe v-a\ g\(\fox@\ Ro LD o@”av\\ WO Ll — ot ovw e ve \akl\-
o ¢ o, he @ o@ o AN oo a\mw\ e Qr(\mka v
e V2 b pped” You Loou, o Mgy ave well pasl Ve

oo,

L\D\JL [c \/LG\ Lol ,(._\l'\,\ \/\ Q9 ,\)o\/\\/ o \<\A\‘.Q WA 2 £ AL (O

\. \ , ,
Q/x\)os,.uu/..a ot all e Pr@ %LL//&\\\(L_O PUVE Vou\’\ﬂou\am\\/k @»o,\,u

Q‘J—‘Q’Q\'\ e v \*-QL'\,‘\..Q - ‘/;—_‘7_;‘—;'9 Ca \’\/ \-’W\‘Q/)Q?ﬂ(’._\’ée_sﬂ\\\r( ) g&. (—a-‘h\’ (‘\\ © LGN f
@\A \[-ch\kk/\f/’\ \(\A&"“\’\"\g\\/\\b'ﬂ.v\i Q?@J\’A \\(/ LD C’LL\C\ G\.\?\S?_Q.(:\\/ h/\a‘\‘ \‘\/‘ \:0

Pro ¢ o.(‘n@\ \’6 e /e c\/' a c‘/\ AE (.g,e,\, <L\,\ to ac;\L ‘Q¢ (oY WV @J-JJ e c\«/\ \,@L,u.ﬂ) -
LWy 2o ? T \ad < 2 v 7
u/\ L 7 Ao o ()\u o\ m»\w\w«_dﬁ\\,ﬁ L QO \/ko(\\\/\ ()f OVOS-&Q\ f




“
v &/
(Cowkck \,u,\f Q(:L-;’”\\V\ Coe s J’&Qo,«/,o,u\cm \/vO e :eeca’ Wh Sg=)

\Page 104
'?\C}\A‘\/\ kaf)\\ﬁ \Q’\w\ , (..._Gi)\,c,c Coon MLtz WD oo\ \:’;’vﬂt\\!ﬂ A\Q\Q\(VO"\ K"\,(,Q Ct ‘/‘Q"O‘ v

— ' - l '
(& “w C@"‘G " (\,,,\(0 “w WO t\f\/\ \(,Q ) /e\/L,\O ol 9\\/0@ u\@,u/\ a\\”\'\’a’.u\\f Qv \'S
o Tge& v ek A @(A\Q Co\e X0 v *{4@—“ e ?f © P"’cf’—r—\ @WQ\ Lo\\ﬁ 0 :(

l/B QP \0\ )O.ﬂ_ d\ QDL Oy 4\/{@0_\,\ LACL v\ \«swul ' \\'J&-'Q\Q : ‘Q&_g(&_o_ \"Qf“”“ \r\’u‘\/
\/ e "'\A((}. \ A () 0\\’\’4 %\& C?\La_ («_\"\ QJM !‘D/o \'v\\'/ L’V O ——«.(; .\c\ \\\/\ b \/\/uﬁ

S i o ' /; ! ‘
e G2 P 44 G C‘.CLVV\\L.:\ Quk\" ‘o \’\/UL 6&0 \\’e (.A.\/\('l.\J\/\ ngo\/ OHC\\A
Conel's " Ase@ed Wl Slockear, Cyorn T

NevUyu. 4 aun Lo \-

Plogos vu:;\ Yo Lo Ule C\/Lau\cr\&_(}\ . "’\'Vr: Cf\/‘ "‘C}"—\ da ?‘“\2\'&/(
Cre @,Q, ) \\’Q 2vuall oy S\ ac\’\ o'\ '\}Q\Ah&'c,\Q,.(’ —CJow k)ll\/\é\ o ,j \‘Q/ e \O(/Lﬁ\«t

.. ’ . 1 i \ I
CQ\/\‘JL ComLe, ) \/ ("\ 0Lp \r\m\’ O\ ™ (3:\ QLW \'/\\S -»‘Lk\ wo \\ﬂ/\ — CL \’LA
vy

CL\\/\\f\v\ do y g \(\A.n \/uz 2

N l(Tun\f.i o leld AL L.L(;\/\ VD wmen /- Vk"\ h?z_(/\ v

@\Mw\ CDJ\\’»\ \f\w\\/ CoOL Qv

(f)’o LA (‘\/\J \,u(‘,\'( © A \)\V_.\A\ L‘..\JL(’ en Ve \A Ceen Oty J

& oY Fuchivee edee\Cver, O oc cossouy Oden Win, Lz s

/
\/\ QLW -

‘ \Q\/\/ NS \Art_,\‘w_ “\\!‘\f’az\ \/c; &\\/l» SJL \/\/\\{ \(\Jm~ @c.c\(--"‘(%ﬂ «1\5\ \LM“‘OU (4
MP) S\ o\, \’\A_.Q_, \/\ L\m,‘\‘).ﬂ. c& Yide o \(T; Ounn (i—j(\\/’% (‘é G‘Q‘\ﬁ O\

U0 \OL V'O\\K’ ’

AN O | V2

, ) ‘ : .
L ecune . \, HAN ¥ NI low. L?\ o \L’.ﬂ—e A GL-L&L\ \(\,\a Ju () Q ukLc‘\ \Q»Q \ rk\‘\,ﬁ~ - &”‘o \a oo
‘ KQJ Nle ene \“\ O\ @\/U“Q dd e 15 ek é\)m\aLk “ ‘ é{ \(/’0 ! \{\AQ‘ ('\ u(a\

Gl W e ‘Q\/Qu« e gox‘zo.(.a.o\ LT)\,\:&LCKWL‘J\ voauld blown LA \/\'L'Q Coulli

w ‘(&\fa ./\ s )9‘\“\ we\\ L‘““\ Acvost oun arowds sud pie P—L’k\/w\ )
] \

¥ \@U\f@v\»/ ¢ @Oy (J\\/" a < ,”’“7@.&(/ , ;TC ;o {2 Pl 16\/‘:1\’““/’ \’S\’w“/‘ \/b‘(' /\/\/:‘u)“

h
"\k\mxu Rea rouy w We Yo %\«Q\_L';g\ - C’A/u\c& \{\.&k '"{)‘\0\‘7( e \LC\ t’k\"LQJL\

M\
\AG\\J \,\A\ @ (¢,

VOIWAE ()/‘ou.w\/m\:\;.ﬂ“ proVedion Would ba pod- i
@au. z%bu YWie Wacd e \’fqa\ v 2

R, T prorde \awe Ve T conon jQM‘Q\ s £ Apniiify ._:Q,u\mu
6\&\/\& e Y\ Q«)Po(ﬂ.&\ Q@Q\u‘n\io'\/t ] ‘“'(/\/Tfe (g |
Aol e e cowniq Lowee ol e Walie Costpat
\/u\/\vml,;\ o (our)\ \\”u Qt\” PMWM\’,' W= Om & VARV TR W oS

/W:\.Qu\\ L‘W@\ O\Aq A \// \/\'A © ? %og’\\:;‘ CQ \b/£C\TQ \/( < / O UL e (\'\/L;Q - \A()U) \‘5
2

\/1 Jo Vo @u\\""b ju«uau e L\ Lo\,\/\a O Qun \Aczq k’o \A\’\’\\S.Q, \(m

o P ' :
(\(ga Wy Qg R AV 6-\,\,\,\@\/\ Qu -’@VU\O_V\\‘\V\ , W (e (;lzu\\” \ \ \zv\&,c/

en Sels T Ereles




1.

X,
@V \\/’:L(.\(L \/\ao‘L ?c»avu\ O ”"-'\JL \(\"‘Q ,“Q‘\CQ\:Q\O\ "“\’/ (R g\"u«lO\Gd“
Page 105 )
a‘\o\ @_/ OQ Qo\cm\\o, O v T \\Z ége_\() v (feu e \@auu,u\ WO JO ot :\/&J

chgg@@\ =\)Jz.\/uﬁg\a_0 (’\Ao\’ o\ugcwm\ LoVL e e MQ N \/ukg \/g)A -L,oc_tﬁ\i\\'é
O ey . Q'\”“ Vule evedl ol Vi \c\,pw (Ol/ e —
\on\\(\,\ C)O““\MV’\ @;\’\\;/ Nede v o '\/u/e_Qw:ch K Pace, due 5 Do

¢ oV 1@ \:\a\ avd o ”“‘Q“ wed ades avd W astravce A -l law
Qg\\ Q @Ao wld b \&p\cﬂu\\\/\ \tieg)\ c.,\acu/ AV AL ‘”T/\/'V"\élf p {? "‘4\’\ “—"\‘M\\q

A weo Oue Rimsvor Slav aan ENlewes D(;y Vewwide could Lo

\fx)ov\,L\J :7,_9\ . ALt e é) =D m,\_A\ o W N [( P \;cﬁ\’.é

\\(;z\.:“:i\:s\v(\p\._a Qe &2 \_\/‘0_.0_, \\/\r\/ \A,« \\g V\AOA}AQ\IV\ ) 'Q\OC,\'<Q \A(;k\);?a

A el

Q&Q r: ad L ‘aid ‘\\“’/ W de. aue \AV Accecc Q«L\\A\/‘s’ CJA.A‘(V PLLL oot <o\4\"6
e Graruacvas Favwe prodei Lovne . 77T ancad lamalil, of- ueco
Pw \/\\K’ CO\Q \/u kg—\/\.ﬂ\\/tﬁ,\ Qv \z\\)\ \’\/uu, m\\ovh ({o\) n QQ«AA\\MV QFOR ezk\qf\,
Gt OQQO&w\ s Pes S\m\\ mu) \/Q\\\ L?JA ccm.\ cw\»uux vie i v \I'A '\ww
/\/0 C{\,@,L_\,LGLLVJL,{ . :7\,\/\ ()uu.o\ O(:«C‘Q-\ wx\c\ \'kou o, —*\’(“m“aum Om&'(‘c Ol el
2 R Oecwe Q(:‘\\/\\/‘C , (—%m\"\‘\aé\o«.&u\ﬂmu@\) \oe @uen , @m\L:Q,‘ Ad Ao
\Acu \ &\/u\/ okv\/'\;nu\u/“ 4JJZJ%\/\C?((,\/;:QJ ﬁd WA c'}\k\)'JL.(’ e ¢:a‘V'(,u.u4.\ \i'""a\/m\

o«\— C owlvone, oLV 0vE Swele TEade Livoe . LWL o bow
(No\u\\i\ pose ey &?_@,,\"WL;\ W wriove eave , Wwve. cocdd b o

AoV e\ w\ VOl \)-ﬂ\/\.\(,\&,“ g e & \‘.\36\‘,»'5 Trade Lavwe ol Ll O
"\/\/\;Lc". f\& Vulo \.)\(-L\G\ vy

o, y\’u\/\@s — \g\w\\" ?rm\‘c(o wt 'LO ‘bﬁ«wwv W@«&Q \J\Qt/-&? Ao \M ‘@\’G\\u;w\\/ﬂ

() lo g:oc’\"u\p\ (3 Q-‘U NV \/ \(\/LL ’6\0\ @m\"\f\ac&o \/0’\;;\”:—\(’4_ W S’Lf\g\& W

/lo.m\wma L o Wwac OQ \r \/\AFW\ POLSL \/uvu\ QA \f\u ’\\V’o‘\ku\,\,\ ch\\\< G\V\\)L‘.
/‘—g Y\/\_\,(’ P\bk\/\\/\\.v\ﬂ\

?(\)\\,az& ”LQ A L,Q 4\“& (A\’ln?_a\ ) \,\/LQ (VN \J&/\o\\/‘ Y \(‘T:)
P /l\Q V) (L\,\\'

(V\JW\JLLQ\”A u_@\a\o\\q\ S\re_ﬂ_\ﬂ_\,uio\ \"\/u_ Leaveio
HQ\ . i &m\\'\ J‘Co\\/\ e SQ‘—QV e \Oukp/\& vavu e \(\/\(LL/\ :Q”O" h,LJL

\0\/L\/LD ak\o\,b \”"’OQ ? “’(’\21 afa_en \JQO»\ALA »QAM*\ .y O (,\/\ -
\ ; P N <% \'fO UQ

e»\~ Crvtan Bed¢”. T sould be Fobinl ey cbion, ol e
Q\\) Qen \ Ov\\l(\ abu\pu\O ﬂo\\m\la\ gp oA (\

\/\&Q_ C_\ [SRVR ‘I»Q_kL”\\/\ (;\45 J. (L\ [} P \/\JL-Q.L,\\’( @/\

/\’4\’/\/\{2 NESRN a\\ \/Q_C.-e\\v\

& WA \\\ VR a2 Pf\VCQ__c—\ \/LO LLC




o e Ve ok S Dol celf buldd 2
Nemic (T opnoen T Ceo\abad PAYEI00 -\ ke "> ‘o e
e o o v Lad b A W oot
Fowi¥e T Ve \odNia wlomes v \ovovao o QQ~ o U by o
Jild e came wats é\cuv\ M e wolv b e Caws
JBV«“\’~0~ dor e ?(\u.a\ e avud all ol /u_wwm\ e D
T 2o, Ve T 40, wedd Vo 15 condder ollomie

2 Wik \(\m\,u,\v Weo A b Vol M\m;.\s\‘- iy cxwwb\
(—’\/\'Wi\g\u . Be '\ ace \/sﬂ.\,\\"’\\w\ @\a e, 3 Q\Y\/\YV\@\\\, \,Ot@\,&
S Preodo.e ‘e \O-Q.CTVL\.\"L/\ e\ \.D'\\c;\\\’%hg_ Q,,\,. le e / S\
el ovedc o .vvxem.,\ c\v(;g(‘ Q \\f.(\( E\Aacuqu o, o L_U/ (@NLO\U,(

IO Q’W““ 8 pevveooaolct, \ougw&‘aw\\p A e M(\v\-c\v\ (rQ

(OV\A\J(J!/\ &‘g/\\ N m AOJLJ \/LA")\" A (1.\ LAC ~.Q/ 0/\)/ O LY | \/\/k.lL UDOL\\JQ V"(}

Ve d 2O LD o\ e , funva v g, o SN \-Q“lb\(\)»—& o uﬁ\ O “un
OV e p s v\ o \VOJ) P QYo R\\c/\\ S ,(' o‘(\au\(\/k e 450 "(/"""”“\/ ALl -
L. Vi u'ﬁ,\)",«g_,x() A \NJ&U.Q \"',;, 3’.\«2 e\r \( o Wu PJ‘ o Q)w‘;.m»\ @m PRV \\/\.L\
Q\ {’\Q\\c‘f.\\’\o \t N :&YDJ a\\ \/b\«/\ Voo (e < A\ Q.0 o\lof@\) . { . »—ak\/\\_c\
e waVuve blevid \\/\;\ ARV v (‘/R~ &, o\ \Q»(—‘m\/'\/\/\ Gou E()_m v
Moo UL\W 28 t\”\ O e U~\ W Qlveas x . \fé\ ﬂ\,u.e\\k/u)\‘ (\ol\ e\

%\o.cu,\\f Lo \uw\ \\Ag;\,« \(\AJL \1\\(‘)(\0_ d\\\\ Q/ W Oa\ NIRAVN

1
/J)wu.( Laanc w J&\\/\ .

AV \A’\\’fé..a\ we s,




Greenway Farm
Greenway Lane
Charlton Kings
GL52 6PN

19" February 2020

David Oakhill

Head of Planning
Cheltenham Borough Council
Cheltenham

GL50 1PP

PLANNING APPLICATION-20/00154/FUL-OAKFIELD HOUSE STABLES-GREENWAY LANE

Dear Sir,

We understand this is a revision of the original plan-19/01252/FUL submitted some eight months
ago which was ultimately refused a permit in October 2019.

Despite the fact we occupy property some 40 metres distant from the original planned application
and also farming land contiguous to the track leading to the site, we were not informed of the
original application and therefore had no opportunity to comment. We now note that this site
borders the public footpath running from the top of Battledown passing along the farm track leading
to Greenacres Farm and Hallam Oaks, then crossing Greenway Lane into our farmland (which is a
Registered Agricultural Holding) before reaching the Ham via the Cheltenham Circular Path,
stretches of which also run through our farm.

Furthermore, this proposed contemporary style of residence, as planned, is very similar to that
currently under consideration (19/02449/FUL) just 40 meters away across and adjacent to the same
Public Right of Way, as described above.

Neither proposal falls within the Cheltenham PUA gm?t:e Cotswold AONB and such architectural
developments if permitted would lead to adverse features within the local landscape and the visual
change would not respect the residential amenity and that of existing neighbours. The revised
scheme of Oakfield House Stables is not conducive to the amenity and aesthetic values of the
surrounding area.

Our property, Greenway Farmhouse, is one of the two 19" Century properties (the other being
Battledown Manor) in the immediate vicinity of these sites, both of Cotswold Stone and Cotswold
architectural styling. Indeed our Farmhouse is on the 1886 O S MAP and is only meters away from
these sites.




Page 108

Those of us living in (or wishing to move into) the Cotswold AONB have an unwritten obligation to
maintain it’s character in every possible way. Those passing through Greenway Lane, particularly
cyclists, horse riders and walkers using the lane, the adjacent PROW and the Cheltenham Circular
Path would be impacted extremely negatively by these proposed speculative developments and as
such, they would be better sited within the PUA.

It is interesting to note the comments submitted on this proposal from the John Mills Cotswold
Conservation Board and the Campaign to Protect Rural England and we concur with their expressed
conclusions and observations summarising the obvious negative impact.

Before concluding we wish to highlight and query a few specific aspects of this application:-

1. Having lived in Charlton Kings for 55 years and farmed in Greenway Lane for 43 years, we are
aware that various applications on some of this land, previously part of Greenacres Farm, have come
and gone without success but have no knowledge of a granting of change of use from agricultural to
residential.

2. Such sites as this are sometimes claimed to be brownfield ie. previously developed.It appears the
footprint of the sheds here constitute just 4 or 5% of the planned curtilage! DEVELOPED?

3. Contrary to the answers given to item 10 on the application form with regard to the presence of
trees, we note that the revised LANDSCAPE PROPOSALS and BLOCK PLAN seem to show the removal
of a mature oak adjacent to the PROW, to make way for the second access to the freehold land! This
second entrance would presumably be unnecessary if the proposed property was to be kept in hand,
with access being afforded from it’s western boundary.

4. Sustainable Drainage and Sewer Connection. We have already commented on the apparent state
of this sewer which passes through our farmland. (see item 4 in comments on 19/02449/FUL-Kyle
Lodge- dated 12" February 2020)

5. In no way do we want to deter the desire and aspirations of anyone who wishes to build their own
dream home or property, but we feel the architectural design must be appropriate to the location,
particularly when permitted in the Cotswold AONB.

It has been brought to our notice that Oakfield House itself sits in a very large plot within the PUA
with what appears to be a second dwelling, Oakfield Cottage within it's grounds. If there isa
demonstrated need for a third dwelling , no doubt this plan could be accommodated within a slightly
extended curtilage on the northern boundary of Oakfield House extending marginally into the
freehold land but still within the PUA (see Fig.3 in Landscape Consultants Report with original
application-19/01252/FUL-border PUA/AONB.)

So in conclusion we object to this plan for the many reasons stated above but should an alternative
appropriate site be found for such a contemporary designed dwelling, preferably within the PUA, it
could be supported.

The Planning Statement in this revised scheme concludes in note 7.2 that “the current site detracts
from the value of the AONB”. “the amenity and visual value of the site as it currently stands, both in
it's local and wider context, is limited”.

May we respectively suggest that if these are dilapidated and redundant structures, their demolition
and possible seeded replacement with say, meadow flower mixtures or a multi-use grass seed
mixture, the AONB in this location would be considerably enhanced.




SI98}YOJE PUBAS : SEQLIO0D

A'I.,.I\If
I % A wngsy [J

$007d  :oN Bumesg /1efoid 600026} :oNefoid anssj uoganisued [ €685.555¥80 ) &2
v sopuel [
610z Joquedeq  :e1EQ 3r :peyosyd vr Aqumeig. ||[<m N suonerbad B
@00z oS Aope SN BN AUBID @ 4 Buueld [J
oniniD8 e O pocas oD Auqrsees (]

N SHSSS USRI g P pard) Aeupierd T | ey S}o8liydIe JUeAe :

oueT Aemuooio yo pue  R0kud ueld yooig posodaid o Bupwesg L 4 1 <

. N 5 uojepuswIodes
S 7 N s1eyyoly edeaspue

A~ | Jod se seal) Buuseg
ok ,., i @&
L ™
» 000@
.

syeQ wejleH




Page 110

afraybbe e e

z) §§m 37 R&t\\\,@a \
o \

\\\

(icon Zm 1 )

Sy by




Bf: Orco tomaonse Mo v Page 111

Landscape and visual comments on Oakfield House Stables Planning Application — 19/01252/FUL July 26™ 2019

gardens. This elongated built form is not traditional to the area and contrasts with the nearby
property form.

An interesting turn of phrase is used on page 6 in the section on appearance. The building’s styling is
described as helping ‘... to emphasise the submissive nature of the design in relation to the landscape
in which it sits,’ It is arguable that the building design given the spread of the proposals would not
appear as submissive but rather as a large residential property and a considerable increase in the
scale of built form when compared to the previous stable buildings.

At Section 10 — Landscape and Biodiversity the DAS explains that a LVIA has been prepared and its
recommendations have been incorporated in the proposals. It does not however explain how they
have been incorporated or how they have influenced the design.

The middle paragraph of the short Section 12 — Conclusions states, ‘We consider that this proposal is
of an appropriate scale and mass, reflects a suitable aesthetic within this mixed residential area and
fully respects the residential amenity of existing neighbours.’

It is the consideration that the proposals are appropriate for a ‘mixed residential area’ which seem

to be at odds with the rural or as sometimes described semi-rural nature of the site.

Planning Statement
The Planning Statement has been prepared by the Applicant’s Planning Agents SF Planning.

In Section 2.4 it describes the site as being ‘on the boundaries of both the Principal Urban Area and
the Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) as detailed in Figure 3 below’

A |
//[()@‘WW ? /

> o)
RS%’M /éﬂ" S ﬂwfr«u L y
A e vv‘&dé«—ﬁ i
Lok, PUA : /a/ ﬂ'
/%W;tf ﬂ"ww/'&j M/VZ/CM&‘{r

N7

As can be clearly seen from the Planning Statement’s Figure 3 the Site is not on the boundary but
rather outside the Principle Urban Area (PUA) and entirely within the Cotswolds AONB.

Ryder Landscape Consultants Page |4ofl1l



Page 112



Agenda Item 6d

Page 113
APPLICATION NO: 20/00327/CONDIT OFFICER: Mrs Emma Pickernell
DATE REGISTERED: 21st February 2020 DATE OF EXPIRY:
DATE VALIDATED: 21st February 2020 DATE OF SITE VISIT:
WARD: St Peters PARISH:

APPLICANT: | Cheltenham Borough Council

AGENT: Cheltenham Borough Council

LOCATION: | Cheltenham Enterprise Centre, Central Way, Cheltenham

PROPOSAL: | Variation of condition 13 of planning permission 02/01616/FUL to allow units
5, 6 and 7 to operate 24 hours a day

RECOMMENDATION: Permit

N i

T
i
o

Gas Holder

P
Gloucester Road
rimary School .~

This site map is for reference purposes only. OS Crown Copyright. All rights reserved Cheltenham Borough Council 100024384 2007



Page 114
1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND PROPOSAL

1.1 The application site comprises a group of 3 units with consent to operate within classes
B2 (general industry) and B8 (storage or distribution).

1.2 Planning permission was granted for the erection of 8 employment units on this site in
2003 (02/01616/FUL). This permission was subject to the following condition (condition
13):

There shall be no deliveries to or distribution from the units outside the hours of 0730 and
1800 hours unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: Any proposal to extend the hours of deliveries/distribution need to be considered
individually to ensure that the amenities of the occupiers of nearby residential property are
protected.

1.3 Planning permission is sought for the variation of this condition in order to allow a
prospective tenant to carry out delivery and distribution activities 24 hours a day. It is
understood that this is in connection with a company which rent out audio visual
equipment for conferencing and live events.

1.4 The application is to be determined at planning committee as the Council is the applicant.

2. CONSTRAINTS AND RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

Constraints:
Principal Urban Area

3. POLICIES AND GUIDANCE
National Planning Policy Framework

Section 6 Building a strong, competitive economy
Section 8 Promoting healthy and safe communities

Saved Local Plan Policies
CP 4 Safe and sustainable living
EM 2 Safeguarding of employment land

Adopted Joint Core Strategy Policies
SD1 Employment - Except Retail Development
SD14 Health and Environmental Quality

4. CONSULTATIONS

Detailed comments from Environmental Health are still awaited.



Page 115

5. PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS

5.1

Number of letters sent

Total comments received

Number of objections

Number of supporting

[ellellellall

General comment

The application was publicised by way of letters to 10 neighbouring properties. No
responses have been received.

6. OFFICER COMMENTS

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

Determining Issues

The key issues in determining this application are considered to be (i) the principle, and
(ii) impact on neighbouring properties.

The site and its context

The site is part of an existing industrial building within a wider industrial estate, accessed
off Arle Road.

Principle

Section 6 of the NPPF states that planning decision should recognise and address the
specific locational requirements of different sectors including making provision for clusters
of high tech industries and for storage and distribution operations at a variety of scales
and in accessible locations.

Policy SD1 of the JCS is generally supportive of employment related development
particularly on allocated sites, as is policy EM2 of the adopted Local Plan. The emerging
Cheltenham Plan sees the site allocated as a key existing employment site in policy EM1
and seeks to safeguard the site for employment purposes.

The proposal would retain the use of the units within the approved B2 and B8 uses of the
site. The variation to the condition would facilitate the use of these units by an audio visual
equipment company. The Local Planning Authority should be flexible where possible to
allow the economy to grow and to provide suitable accommodation for businesses looking
for premises within the Borough. Therefore subject to the proposal being satisfactory in all
other regards, the principle is supported.

Impact on neighbouring property

Policies CP4 of the Local Plan and HD14 of the JCS seek to ensure that development
does not cause harm to the amenity of local occupants.

The variation to the condition which is hereby sought would result in the unit being
capable of being accessed for deliveries and distribution at any time and as such it is
important to consider whether this would have any adverse impact on neighbouring
amenity. The nearest residential property is the listed Alstone House to the east of the
site. The layout of the site is such that vehicles accessing the site would not drive near to
this property; however, the noise of any activity associated with loading and unloading
needs to be considered. To this end the Environmental Health Officer has been consulted
on this application. They have requested further information from the applicant, which has
been supplied. Their final comments are awaited.



Page 116

7. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

7.1

7.2

The use of the unit by the prospective tenant does not require planning permission,
however the requirement to access the site for deliveries etc. does, due to a restrictive
condition on the original consent. This is supported in principle, however neighbour
amenity is crucial and the views of the Environmental Health Officer are important in this
final judgement and as such this matter will be updated at committee.

The issuing of a decision on a variation of condition application has the effect of issuing a
new planning permission and as such all relevant conditions from the original consent
must be restated. An updated list of conditions is provided below.

8. CONDITIONS / INFORMATIVES

1

Only the areas shown on the approved plans as car parking spaces shall be used for
car parking.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and sustainability

The car parking area, driveway, turning areas and cycle parking shall be retained in
accordance with the approved plans and available for use as car parking and turning.
Reason: To ensure adequate car parking and turning within the curtilage of the site, in
the interests of highway safety.

The service and turning area to the eastern end of the site shall be kept free of
obstructions at all times and shall be used for servicing and turning only.

Reason: To ensure adequate facilities for servicing and turning in the interests of
highway safety.

The car parking area on the approved plan shall only be used in connection with the
scheme hereby approved and shall be kept available for such use at all times in
perpetuity.

Reason: To ensure that car parking continues to be available within the curtilage of the
site and therefore that parking on the public highway is reduced, in the interests of
highway safety.

No buildings, structures, any proposed landscaping or other permanent obstruction
shall be located within a strip of land 8 metres wide adjacent to the top of bank of the
River Chelt (as altered in accordance with the scheme of works agreed as part of the
previous condition) unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Ground levels shall not be altered unless agreed with the Environment Agency as part
of the works to the River Chelt.

Reason: To maintain access to the watercourse for maintenance or improvements.

There shall be no deliveries to or distribution from the units outside the hours of 0730
and 1800 hours unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority,
apart from units 5, 6 and 7 which may carry out deliveries/distribution at any time.
Reason: Any proposal to extend the hours of deliveries/distribution need to be
considered individually to ensure that the amenities of the occupiers of nearby
residential property are protected.

Noise from the operations carried out in any building, or otherwise on any part of the
subject land, shall achieve a noise rating level that does not exceed the existing



Page 117

background noise level. The measurements and assessment shall be made in
accordance with the provisions of BS4142: 1997.
Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the occupiers of neighbouring residential

property.



This page is intentionally left blank



Appeals Lodged Feb/March 2020

Address Proposal Delegated or Appeal Type Anticipated Appeal Reference
Committee Decision Determination Date

Summerfield House 21 | Coping (roof) repairs. Delegated Written May 2020 Planning ref:

Royal Parade 19/01781/LBC Appeal

ref: 20/00004/LISTB1

6TT abed

/. Wa}| epuaby



Appeals Determined

Address Proposal Delegated/Committee Appeal Type Outcome Reference
Decision
Communications Kiosk | Display of a single Delegated Fasttrack Dismissed 18/02528/ADV
0S4 illuminated sequential Appeal Ref:
Pittville Street display affixed to the 19/00016/ADV1
frame of the
communication hub.
Communications Kiosk | Display of a single Delegated Fastrack Dismissed 18/02530/ADV
0S8 iluminated sequential Appeal Ref:
Winchcombe Street display affixed to the 19/00017/ADV1
frame of the
communication hub.
Communications Kiosk | Display of a single Delegated Fasttrack Dismissed 18/02535/ADV
0S 33-41 illuminated sequential Appeal ref:
Promenade display affixed to the 19/00021/ADV1
frame of the
communication hub.
Communications Kiosk | Display of a single Delegated Fasttrack Dismissed 18/02534/ADV
0S 56 illuminated sequential Appeal ref:
Promenade display affixed to the 19/00020/ADV1

frame of the
communication hub.

02T obed



Display of a single

Communications Kiosk | illuminated sequential Delegated Fasttrack Dismissed 18/02533/ADV

0S 100 display affixed to the Appeal ref:

Promenade frame of the 19/00019/ADV1
communication hub.

Communications Kiosk | Display of a single Delegated Fasttrack Dismissed 18/02532/ADV

OS Quadrangle illuminated sequential Appeal ref:

Promenade display affixed to the 19/00018/ADV1

frame of the
communication hub.

Authorised By: David Oakhill

T¢T abed



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	5 Minutes of last meeting
	Minutes

	6a 20/00214/CONDIT Wyastone Hotel, Parabola Road
	Wyastone Hotel - representations

	6b 19/02449/FUL Kyle Lodge, Greenway Lane
	Kyle Lodge - representations
	Kyle Lodge letter report
	1 letter
	2 letter
	3 letter
	4 letter
	5 letter
	6 letter
	7 letter
	Friends of Oakley Farm Pasture Slopes


	6c 20/00154/FUL Oakfield House Stables, Greenway Lane
	Oakfield House Stables - representations
	letter report
	Hallam Oaks
	Hallam Oaks re-sub
	Greenway Farm letter
	Greenway Farm drawings


	6d 20/00327/CONDIT Cheltenham Enterprise Centre, Central Way
	7 Appeal Updates

